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Chairman’s Statement

TRE®RE

The Group faced a challenging operating environment in
2015. The global economy decelerated and grew at its
slowest pace since the financial tsunami of 2009, while
Mainland China’s economic growth also slowed noticeably.
Locally, the decline in retail sales aggravated and consumer
sentiment was subdued by increased uncertainties over the
economic outlook as well as stock and property price
corrections. For 2015 as a whole, real GDP in Hong Kong
only expanded by 2.4%, representing the fourth consecutive
year of sub-par growth. Correspondingly, advertising
spending in Hong Kong only grew by 3% in 2015, the lowest
since 2000.

Facing this difficult market environment, the print media
industry suffered a setback, exacerbated by the structural
change in the trade. During the year the industry saw a
number of newspapers and magazines cease publication,
change hands or restructure their operations. Many print
media businesses in the market have experienced a
deterioration in revenue and profit and some have been
incurring losses. In the face of these circumstances, the
performance of the Group’s core Media businesses held up
rather well.

For the Year, the Group’s key newspaper products in Hong
Kong delivered intact results. However, this was not sufficient
to offset the decline in other business areas including the
Sing Tao Daily overseas operations and our Magazine
operations, and thus the 2015 results recorded a drop in
consolidated revenue and profit.
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Chairman’s Statement

Headline Daily, the number 1 free newspaper in Hong Kong,
remained dominant in the market and maintained a high
profit. In 2015 it continued to lead in terms of circulation,
readership and advertising. With a readership that exceeded
the net total of the other Chinese free dailies combined,
Headline Daily represented the most effective print
advertising medium for advertisers to reach their target
audience. To maintain its appeal as the preferred choice by
advertisers, Headline Daily is committed to offer high value-
added services to meet their needs, whilst providing readers
with a high quality general newspaper. At the same time, as
a middle-class newspaper, Sing Tao Daily focuses on its core
competence as a provider of factual news and objective
analyses with a clear positioning. In the current phase of
transition and change of the newspaper market wherein only
the fittest will survive, it is all the more important that we
remain focused on our strong fundamentals and the long-
standing strategies that have helped to shape our
competitiveness and build our success.

An efficient operation with a sustainable cost structure and
optimal deployment of resources are also crucial for
competitiveness. The Group has been making careful
investments in new media businesses to complement our
traditional core products and develop new opportunities that
are opening up in the industry. As well, all units of the
Group have been diligent in implementing process
optimization, resource sharing and other restructuring
initiatives for efficiency improvements and cost containment.
Our financial prudence and healthy balance sheet will place
us in a strong position to face the headwinds of the coming
year.

Finally, I would like to thank our advertisers, readers and
shareholders for their continued support and also our staff
for their tremendous effort and dedication to the Sing Tao
Group.

Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Major Evens of theWear
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Sing Tao News Corporation has organized
"Leader of the Year" Award since 1994
to pay tribute to outstanding leaders
and set examples of excellence. The
awardees this year from four categories,
namely, "Commerce & Industry / Finance',
"Community / Public Affairs / Environment
& Conservation", "Education / Professions /
Technology & Innovation" and "Sports /
Culture / Performing Arts", demonstrate
dedication and commitment and

are role models for our next

generation.
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Major Events of the Year
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The annual "Sing Tao Inter-School Debating Competition”

12E2BHEET : raE% % gk co-organized by Sing Tao Daily and The Standard reached
L — [ =mmo pam its 30th year in 2015. In addition, Sing Tao Daily co-held

2HEEE EHARK

=L BB primary and secondary school admission seminars with

CHDREME X
N T the Education Bureau.
ARSI

| R Sing Tao Daily continually upgraded its Features section,

'm,'“"',"". and in April introduced a 12-page art-paper Thursday
supplement, the first of its kind, offering readers

a variety of content on lifestyle, art and

culture and fashion trends.
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Smart Parents was named "Magazine of the Year (Local Parenting Magazine)"
by Marketing Magazine for the third year in a row. In July, Smart Parents
offered a new members’ mobile app allowing readers to redeem Smart
Parents with a barcode and preview the latest contents.
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[RERTFERES]

é@a winaz(NO.1) maisssal

BUREZRAS
i —
Tsmmamznmn
T\ nzasenes

EMMOA IR T RABEE TONBIE] - —%R
BUAHTEAAE  BTHE B EBRERSEN i p—
ANEERARER  ARRELHS  BTEARAZER Nl

DERNG AL P 1T

In October, the Group launched the
all-new parenting and education
website Ohpama.com, a one-stop
platform providing information
on local and overseas education,
parenting as well as relevant events
and products, together with advice
and tips from an array of education
experts, experienced practitioners,
parenting celebrities and popular
bloggers.
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Headline Daily celebrated its 10th anniversary with a range of activities

including a pop-up card game, the "Sure Win Game" with prizes of over m
HK$2 million and a joint promotion with Hong Kong Disneyland. For

10 years, Headline Daily has been Hong Kong's No. 1 free newspaper
and its readership continued to top all newspapers in Hong Kong,
exceeding the net total readership of the other three Chinese free
dailies by 25%'. During the festive seasons of Chinese New Year and
Christmas in 2015, the circulation of Headline Daily set a record of 1

BBHIT7%?

" e RIBND. B2
passy

E ‘;g ..::;—

million copies.

Headline Daily scooped the Gold prize in the "Best Media
Campaign - Print" category at "The Spark Awards 2015".
In addition, its Flip-Page App was awarded in May
by The Office for Film, Newspaper and Article

V=
NOA RibE
WRFUNE

Administration as one of the top 10 in the ﬁﬁﬁfgﬁﬁﬂtﬁﬁﬂijﬁ*ﬂu -,,l_!
20144 THA3E TR

"2014 Healthy Mobile Phone/Tablet Apps
Nomination Programme".

aw wEERATANSE

#Ipsos Media Atlas Jan - Dec 2015 report

- N Agmemaias
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B Sthoadiine.com . [ [SEf&POPNews | 7 [The Spark Awards 2015 E&

= [Best Launch/ Relaunch] & [Best Use of Integration ] 3
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Headline POPNews won the Silver prize in the "Best Launch/ Relaunch"
and "Best Use of Integration" categories at "The Spark Awards 2015" In
August, Headline POPNews revamped its app to include the full contents
of eastweek.com.hk, offering more news and videos on entertainment and
current affairs.

N —FIR=%h28A%HA ] (ESRM) ERWAEARDNEEATE+

((%,%))%ﬁyﬁﬁzmj( RIHEE  AORS T RLERERES

(EBR#HM) HEMHEMEHNER -

The Eastern US Edition and the Western US Edition
of Sing Tao Daily marked their 50th and 40th
anniversary, respectively, with the mayors of New
York and San Francisco commending the newspapers

RHANER(ETIREBALR

Snpmranr: for their contribution to the local community.
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Major Events of the Year
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The Group’s magazines continued to organize a
number of esteemed events, including the "Lantau
Development Forum" co-organized with Lantau
Development Alliance and the "Kids Drawing
Contest". East Week hosted the "Outstanding
Corporate Strategy Awards" and the "Hong Kong
Service Awards", East TOUCH held the"TOUCH
Brands and TOUCH Icon Awards Presentation
2015", JET celebrated its 13th anniversary with the
"12 + 1 Creative Message Contest" and Caz Buyer
organized "The Best of Cars 2015".
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With an effective and comprehensive distribution network, T oo 7 @ei PSS
JobMarket has become the No.1 recruitment print media in Hong 2 A
Kong. According to Ipsos Media Atlas Jan - Dec 2015 report,
JobMarket was the recruitment magazine with the most readers
and, according to admanGo (Jan - Dec 2015 data), JobMarket was
No.1 in advertising revenue among print recruitment publications in
Hong Kong.

,} " ..-,

The unit complemented its service in recruitment advertising
with other events including job fairs, overseas
education fairs and the "Greater China Talent

Management Summit" to serve

recruiters and jobseekers.
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Major Awards of the Year

Hong Kong News Awards
2015

2015 F EFEREMELE

Best News Reporting
RENHMERE
+® Winner : Sing Tao Daily
BE (ESAM)
£S5 S FEREEIOZS
]
® Merit : Sing Tao Daily
BE (EBAR)
ES: YN L S

Best News Writing (Chinese)

REFHEBE (P32H)

® Winner : Sing Tao Daily

BE(EBB®)

xR BE ) EeRE
RREELER

® 1st Runner-up: Sing Tao Daily

DB (EBH®)

T [Rass]
HRCRIERR

Best News Page Design

| BEFMEESH

i ® Winner: Sing Tao Daily

: BE I (ESA®)

T BRRERD

Best Headline (English)

RIEHRE ()

{ @ Winner:The Standard @-woeeovens :

BE : GRXER)
F 7 : Healthy kids' meals?
: Fat chance!
i ® 2nd Runner-up: The Standard
POEE  (EXEH)
F3E : Court cooks their goose
Best Scoop
. BEREHM
@® 1st Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
: mE(ESHB)
TR BRERELLEIEER
: %51
:  ® 2nd Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
| FE (ERAW)
T BREEETRERRESR
Ko ghbn Ba

Tl M-

[

- HEALTHY I(IDS’MEALS’ :
3 L_.___‘r

FE T ERIA

Best Young Reporter
REHA
® 1st Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
DE (EBH®)
THENERBEEFER

D iEE |8

2. ENETEER BT FT
ZHREBRES
3. Kﬂx@\z’i‘ﬁﬁ*“

= BEA
Photographic Section
(Features)
ER# (FR#E)
® 2nd Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
ZE (EBH®)
T RAKY - B |
Best Business News Reporting
REREHREE
® Merit : Sing Tao Daily
BE (EBB#H)
B B T RFREMEFER
® Merit : Sing Tao Daily
BR (EBR®)
TR PRERERT
Best Science News Reporting
RERPHERE
® Merit : Sing Tao Daily
BR (EBE®m)
ES - EN e B
Best Arts and Culture News
Reporting

| BEXERHMEE
® Merit : Sing Tao Daily
i BE(E2BA®M)

x5 ARl R RS

® Merit : Sing Tao Daily
BRI (BEBRA®)
L OXE EEFRERS

Best Business News Writing
i (Chinese)

| REEEHERE (Pxd)

: @ Merit: Sing Tao Daily

ER (EBR®R)

ET RPNY

[t R TR 5&
K=mEREMERr

® Merit : Sing Tao Daily
¢ EBE (EBRH)
L XE [RERRTLE

TEREE

A8

i Best Headline (Chinese)
| RS (i)

: @ Merit: Headline Daily @-«-----oonoe
P ER: (EKA®R)

P OERE REEEE SR
¢ Photographic Section
: (Sport)

;. B (REwE)

® Merit : Headline Daily
BE: <<EE1|§E| )
=S v

>

“Focus At The Frontline
2015” Photo Contest

<<auﬁ £262015) #HHE
BRULLE

Portrait

At

® Winner: Sing Tao Daily @-«eeeeeeeeeees :

BE (EBA®R) :

IE: SREBEIARE

@ Honorable Mention: Sing Tao Daily

BER  (EBHAR)

THE BEER [FE] HRERR

General News :

— R

® 1st Runner-up: Sing Tao Daily

DE I (EBR®)

TR TNBEREHEIMAK

® 2nd Runner-up: Sing Tao Daily

FE (EBRAW)

TR BREIRREERR
SlEBEHE :

® Honorable Mention: Sing Tao Daily

BER (EBAR) :

TR BERBEREEFHE

Feature

HRa

@ 1st Runner-up: Sing Tao Daily

DE I (EBA®)

T HEEREE

B8 [BOKED

@® Honorable Mention: Sing Tao Daily
BEK  (ESAR) :
T REATEEEAMAEK
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Consumer Rights Reporting

Awards 2015
E+hEAEERNER
Hig

Category: Features
LT :
® Gold Award: East Week |
B8 (RATD
ERE 1L AEREEFR2001E
BEYF
BEBAGE R
2. BB ETEE
SR B IE AT
BUR R #E [ B E T
Category: News
Al %ﬁKﬂ
® Bronze Award : Sing Tao Daily
2 (EBBHR)
= REFHFE
Category: Press Photo
A REER
® Gold Award: Sing Tao Daily
TR (EBRR)
ERE TR
® Bronze Award: Sing Tao Daily
3 - (RS BH)
T AP EEERTT
® Certificates of Merit: Headline Daily
BRE  GREBER)
T SEEYE




The Society of Publishers
in Asia (SOPA) 2015 Awards
for Editorial Excellence

DMHEEHER T tE
2 2R

Excellence in Information
Graphics

S EE Gk

® Award for Excellence: Sing Tao Daily
R (BSH®)

FRE gL

Excellence in Editorial
Cartooning

HiigE5g

@ Award for Excellence: Headline Daily @
R GRIGER)

FRE U

The 19th Annual Human
Rights Press Awards

FtNE AR REE

Chinese Features
hXHE

@ Merit : Sing Tao Daily
BEE  (E5A®)
F3E L HEIENERER RS
Feature Photograph
= g y
@ Merit : East Week

BRE  EATD

TE  EBRIGE

s P I A
Baasncum sgENsERs

vege

Taadwsan
=

-] zerer wemer Benen

2015 State Street
Institutional Press Awards,
Asia Pacific

FNEEESETAER
R T 2R

Journalist of the Year -
Alternatives (Chinese
Category)
FEFEIES - BEREARN
(FA3ZER)
® Honorable Mention: East Week
BEE : RAT)
X 1. BAEERER

HEMREE

2. AHEEL—F
AN RAE R

Journalist of the Year -
Investment (Chinese
Category)
FEMEILES - REAR
(F3zER)
® Honorable Mention: East Week
BEE : RATD
FRE 1 ABEBAT
WiR [4IAR ] HRERE
2. [ET#HERE] LBE
B RISRITYRE S
Journalist of the Year -
Regulation (Chinese
Category)
FEMBIES - ZRE5
(FA3ZER)
@ Honorable Mention: East Week
BEE: RATD
X 1L [ABEIRR
BB T
CallEE Appsif iR Bars 1
2. ABRIBINERE HE
b= NE S

HKAIM Media

Convergence Awards 2014

2014 FRER AR

Weekly Magazine
Category(Website)
HT‘I%EU (#8u)

@ Silver Award: East TOUCH
§RHE © (RTOUCH)

+ IELR K % iE

Jersity Journzlism Award

The 7th Chinese University

Journalism Award

FLEPXHER

Best News Feature
(Newspaper/Magazine)
RIEEER (RE/#E)

® Grand Award: East Week
R CGRATD

TR RKEERD

Best News Reporting
(Newspaper/Magazine)
RENEE HE/HE)

@ Certificate of Merit: Sing Tao Daily
BER  (ES5H®)

T (REIERERD

The Spark Awards 2015

Best Media Campaign -
Print

® Gold: Headline Daily

Ea - BEGEITI=E )

F7E . M&M's[EasonR k58 )
Best Launch/Relaunch

® Silver: Headline POPNews

$RE8 : [SE{KPOPNews |

Best Use of Integration

: ---@ Silver: Headline POPNews

$R4% : [SE{FPOPNews |

Best Media Campaign -

Social Media

® Silver: PC Market

$REE . (PCMEISES)

F & : [FE&Social Mediag] & 57
THRERE

2014 Healthy Mobile
Phone/Tablet Apps
Nomination Programme

2014 EF 4/ FRER
FEREXREEH

® Winner: Headline Daily
BERIEE © GRIRA®R)
T REBERETFEARER
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Major Awards of the Year

FE T E IR

2015 Meritorious Websites
Contest

2015BFHERE

® Winner: Headline Daily LA :
BERIRRE - GRIREHR) :

The 11th "Eastern Imagination”
Global Chinese Radio Innovation
Programs Competition

F+—E [RG1HE| 2%
ERRENNSHEXE
@ Bronze Award: Sing Tao Chinese Radio

W RBTEXEA
X R

2015 New York
Community Media Alliance
Ippies Awards

20154 494t = % R RS B
3CEL Hi R 28

Best Editorial/Commentary
REFREAXE

® Winner: Sing Tao Daily (New York

Edition)

BE  (EEEER) BARR

R FESEFHES - ST
ANEBAERRE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E R W S oA

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The consolidated revenue of Sing Tao News Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year”)
amounted to approximately HK$1,864 million as compared
with approximately HK$1,987 million last year. Profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$62 million as compared with
approximately HK$114 million last year.

Given the continued volatility and the unclear trend during
the Year, the Group’s treasury investment has been conducted
cautiously.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
proposed a final dividend of HK4 cents per share. The
dividend for the Year shall be HK6 cents per share.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources, Gearing Ratio,
Charges on Group’s Assets

The Group maintained a strong financial position with a net
cash position throughout the Year. During the Year, the
Group paid approximately HK$41 million for deposits and
purchases of items of property, plant and equipment. As at
31 December 2015, the Group had a net cash balance
(calculated with reference to the Group’s cash balances and
total borrowings) of approximately HK$844 million (31
December 2014: approximately HK$823 million).

The gearing ratio, defined as long-term borrowings to equity,
was zero as at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: zero).
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had not
pledged any asset.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Structure, Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange
Rates

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its
treasury function and uses different hedging methods to
minimize the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on its
financial performance.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any
contingent liability or claim which the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) considered to be material.

BUSINESS REVIEW

According to admanGo, Hong Kong’s overall advertising
market recorded a year-on-year growth rate of only 3% in
2015, a record low since 2000 when the media monitoring
data started. Given the sluggish global economy, volatile
financial markets and slowdown in tourism, local economic
growth came under pressure especially in the second half of
the year. The Group’s Media operations were affected, albeit
to a lesser extent than other players in the market, and
reported a decrease in segment revenue from approximately
HK$1,973.7 million in 2014 to approximately HK$1,854.0
million in 2015, a reduction of 6.1% or HK$119.7 million.
Segment profit of the Media operations decreased from
approximately HK$138.5 million in 2014 to approximately
HK$81.0 million in 2015, a reduction of 41.5% or HK$57.5
million.

B E & W S oA

BEXGRE  EXRBEAR

AEBEHEEERBENE  WRATROE T
% BERINE R B H M S RIRE 2 B R E R
i

HREE

AEER _E—RF T _A=+—BUEEFARQA
EX2([EF2)RREBERNIRBELRE -

e e

BiEadmanGo MFET - BEEBEEMSEN_E—X1
FEBEINNIZFIER A _STTFHEBER
HIRLARMFE o 2EAETIR « © RIS 8) RIR
WERELERAEERE - LETHFIFRESH
B ASBERNEBERTITE  ANEERAXSL
& - 2 EBRA R ZE —HF 49 1,973,700,000 7 7T B
= T — A F 41,854,000,000 7 7T ¢ 8 D 6.1% =X,
119,700,000 87T + EEEBHN D E 2 A B =T —MMF
#7138,500,000 % 7T T & & = F — A F 49 81,000,000 /5
JC B 41.5% 3% 57,500,000 87T ©

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED  Annual Report 2015



Management Discussion and Analysis

B E R W S oA

Newspapers

In 2015, the newspaper advertising market grew by 2%;
according to admanGo, free newspapers’ advertising revenue
went up by 11% whereas paid newspapers experienced a
record drop of 6% in advertising revenue. Among the latter,
some newspaper operations have discontinued or undergone
consolidation and restructuring in view of the difficult market
environment, while some others have experienced noticeable
declines in income and profit. This phase of evolvement in
the industry has been ongoing for some time and is expected
to continue.

As the number 1 free newspaper in Hong Kong, Headline
Daily is in a strong position to weather the changing market
conditions. Headline Daily continued to lead in terms of
circulation, printing capacity, readership and advertising.
Average weekday circulation exceeded 851,000 copies
(according to Hong Kong Audit Bureau of Circulations Oct-
Dec 2015 report) and average readership was 1,292,000
(according to Ipsos Media Atlas Jan-Dec 2015 report);
Headline Daily’s readership was 25% more than the net total
of the other three Chinese free dailies combined, making it
not only the print advertising medium reaching the largest
audience but also the most cost-effective. According to
admanGo, Headline Daily was the newspaper in Hong Kong
with the largest amount of advertising in 2015 both in terms
of volume and revenue. It was also the market leader in a
range of categories spanning Banking and Retail to
Education, and achieved substantial growth in major
categories such as Pharmaceuticals, Travel and Property.
Although advertising revenue grew steadily in the first half,
the slackened market conditions in the second half posed a
drag on the growth momentum especially towards the end of
the year. Headline Daily was able to maintain its advertising
page rates by focusing on providing an effective advertising
platform and value-add services to its customers; for example
it increased its circulation to 1 million copies during the
consumption peak periods of Chinese New Year and
Christmas to serve the needs of advertisers. Going forward,
Headline Daily will continue to enhance its content and
employ innovative promotion formats to create more value
for its readers and advertisers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Although Sing Tao Daily’s first half results exceeded
expectations, the consumer market slowdown and the stock
market falloff in the second half had a dampening effect
which somewhat offset the earlier growth. The volume of
advertising held up but page rates came under pressure.
According to admanGo, Sing Tao Daily was the newspaper
with the second largest amount of advertising in volume
terms in 2015. Apart from the Property category where Sing
Tao Daily achieved further growth in advertising despite the
reversal in the local real estate market during the year,
considerable gains were also made in such categories as
Automobile and Home & Living. This can be attributable to
the newspaper’s efforts on creating high value-add content
that is pertinent to its middle-class readers, such as Lifestyle
Features, Finance and Education. At the same time, the
newspaper is committed to objective news reporting and a
neutral positioning which enable it to maintain a consistent
image and a loyal reader base. The paid newspaper market is
in a phase of structural change and only the fittest will
survive; Sing Tao Daily will adhere to providing a premium
product while optimizing its operations continually to
maximize competitiveness.

The Standard achieved stable results in the first half of the
year, but the worsening market conditions in the second half
dragged down its performance especially in the fourth
quarter. Despite the slowdown in some advertising categories
such as Banking and Luxury Products, The Standard was able
to grow its advertising in Overseas Properties, Hotels and
Travel. It also supplemented its advertising revenue with
income from services to customers including publishing
tailored supplements, organizing events and custom-
publishing projects.

In 2015, the global economy experienced the slowest growth
since 2009 and this has affected the overseas operations of
Sing Tao Daily. Changes in advertiser and reader behavior
and competition from new media also contributed to a
deterioration in the unit’s results, exacerbated by the
depreciation of non-US dollar based currencies. To mitigate
against these, the unit implemented a number of cost saving
measures including rationalizing the management and staff
structure, streamlining day-to-day operations and work flow,
and stringent control over expenses. At the same time,
adjustments to the products’ positioning were made and
supplementary products were launched to maximize revenue
sources.
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Magazines

Hong Kong’s magazine advertising experienced a record
decline of 15% in 2015 (according to admanGo), mainly due
to decreases in advertising spending by the cosmetics, luxury
and fashion segments, in turn a result of the slowdown in the
retail industry and negative consumer sentiment. Competition
was intense as digital media joined in to contend for a
reduced advertising pie. The austere market environment
gave rise to a series of consolidation in the magazine sector,
and a number of titles ranging from fashion to entertainment
magazines have withdrawn from the market. Inevitably, the
Group’s Magazine unit reported a drop in advertising and
circulation revenue. In view of the tough market conditions,
the unit focused on increasing its competitiveness by
strengthening its core products to differentiate their market
positioning. East Week was able to increase its readership,
according to Ipsos Media Atlas Jan-Dec 2015 report, while its
infotainment magazine competitor recorded a considerable
decline. At the same time, the Magazine unit reorganized its
operations to achieve a more resilient and competitive cost
structure, including rationalization and sharing of editorial
resources, and redeployment of resources to further build up
its digital and social media business. It also introduced a
change to PC Market’s operating model whereby starting
from 1 January 2016 the title’s business has been licensed to
its management team.

Recruitment Media

The Group continued to occupy the number 1 position in the
recruitment print media market in Hong Kong. According to
admanGo, JobMarket had the largest share of advertising
spending among print recruitment publications in Hong Kong
in 2015, and was able to maintain its total advertising
revenue while other competitors experienced a decline.
According to Ipsos Media Atlas Jan-Dec 2015 report,
JobMarket saw a 27% increase in readership in 2015 and
remained the leading recruitment publication. In addition,
with the extension of “Headline Hot Jobs”, published in
Headline Daily, to three times a week (Monday, Wednesday
and Saturday), significant increases in revenue and profit
were recorded. The Group’s print recruitment products
comprising JobMarket, Headline Hot Jobs and The
StandardJobs together formed an extensive and effective
advertising medium for recruiters; investments are being
made in the unit’s online recruitment platform to complement
the print publications and are expected to contribute to
further growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

New Media Business Development

In 2015, the Group has placed more management focus and
resources to develop its new media business, in view of the
industry trend under which advertisers gradually increase
their budget allocations to the digital media sector. As well,
given the strong and stable positions of the Group’s
traditional media businesses in the market we considered that
the investments in the new media sector would not burden
the core businesses, financially or operationally. The Group’s
strategy in developing its new media business is to focus on
areas where it can leverage on its existing strengths and
where there are synergies with existing businesses.

“Headline POPNews”, the video site launched in 2014, was
revamped and upgraded during the year to offer a diversity
of stories and videos on entertainment and current affairs.
Average video views surged by 540% in 2015, and in January
2016 one of the videos drew record high video views of
over 280,000. The site won the silver prize in the “Best
Launch / Relaunch” and “Best Use of Integration” categories
at the Spark Awards 2015. In addition, the flip-page app of
Headline Daily was awarded by The Office for Film,
Newspaper and Article Administration as a winner in the
“2014 Healthy Mobile Phone / Tablet Apps Nomination
Programme” as well as in the “2015 Meritorious Websites
Contest”; in both cases Headline Daily was the only Chinese-
language media from Hong Kong to receive the accolades.

In October 2015, the Group launched an all-new product,
Ohpama.com, a one-stop portal for education and parenting
providing information on local and overseas education,
parenting as well as relevant events and products. The
website has seen consistent increases in traffic, with weekly
page views and browsers having increased by 740% and
440%, respectively, from the beginning of November 2015 to
the end of February 2016. The website also actively utilizes
social media to attract and engage readers. Response from
advertisers has been very positive and clients have ranged
from infant formulas to shopping malls and insurance
products.
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PROSPECTS

The global economy, having experienced the slowest growth
since 2009, is expected to stay lackluster in 2016 with
considerable downside risks. In Hong Kong, the Government
projected economic growth to be 1-2% in 2016, below the
average annual growth rate of 3.4% in the past ten years.
Advertisers will be more cautious with their spending, and
the transformation in the traditional media industry will
present a factor of uncertainty.

In this uncertain environment it is all the more important that
we adhere to the strategy of focusing on our competitiveness,
by strengthening our core media products, by exercising
vigilant control over all costs and by being adaptive in our
use of resources to maximize synergies. At the same time, we
shall be astute in adjusting our business models and
developing our new media business to capture additional
revenue and profit prospects. Although the profit outlook in
the short term is expected to be under pressure due to the
general environment, our strong market standing, our healthy
financial position and our well-defined strategy will give us
longer term strength and resilience that will stand us in good
stead.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 2,108
employees.

The Group remunerates its employees based on individual
and business performance. Competitive salaries and benefits
are paid to attract and retain quality staff. Other employee
benefits include medical insurance, discretionary bonus,
share options and provident fund schemes.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (66) has been the Chairman and
an Executive Director of the Company and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company since 2000. Mr. Ho was
awarded the “Grand Bauhinia Medal” by The Government of
the HKSAR in 2014. He is also an independent non-executive
director of Shun Tak Holdings Limited. Mr. Ho contributes
much to public affairs. He is a member of the Standing
Committee of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. In addition, he is an
honorary general committee member of The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, an economic
consultant of Shandong Provincial Government of the
People’s Republic of China, an honorary trustee of Peking
University, and a trustee of University of International
Business and Economics in China. Mr. Ho is the father of Mr.
Ho Kent Ching Tak, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Siu Sai Wo (53) has been an Executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company since 2013. Mr. Siu has
been with the Group for more than 16 years and was the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Editor of Sing Tao
Daily and Headline Daily prior to his appointment as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He joined the Group
as the Executive Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily in 1999. Prior
to joining the Group, he held various senior positions at a
number of leading Chinese newspaper companies in Hong
Kong. He has worked in the print media industry over 29
years. Mr. Siu is the vice chairman of The Newspaper Society
of Hong Kong. He is active in joining social services. He is
currently a member of the Sub-committee on Promotion &
Publicity of Volunteer Service of the Social Welfare
Department of The Government of the HKSAR. He obtained
a Bachelor of Journalism and Communication degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1985.
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Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak (35) has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 2014. He is responsible for the
development of digital media and related businesses for the
Group. From 2010 to 2014, Mr. Ho was a Non-Executive
Director of the Company. He has years of experience in the
media business development, wealth management, and
investments focusing on high-tech industries. He is the
co-founder and currently a general partner of Spectrum 28
Capital, one of the largest new funds to emerge from Silicon
Valley in the last three years. He has invested in companies
such as Palantir (USA) and Coupang (South Korea).
Previously, he was a founding partner of Harbor Pacific
Capital and worked at Goldman Sachs and Sing Tao
Newspapers in San Francisco. He holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Economics and a certificate in the Markets and
Management Program from Duke University and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from Stanford University.
Mr. Ho is the son of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, the Chairman
and an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Jia Hongping (52) has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2000. He is the Chief Representative of
the Beijing office of the Group and also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Jia brings with him a wealth
of experience in management, investment and government
relations to the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in various capacities in the government departments under
the China State Council. In 1998, Mr. Jia joined the Lear
Corporation China Limited as executive director and chief
representative of its Beijing office. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree from the Beijing Institute of Technology University.

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis (57) has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2005. He is the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company and also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the finance and overall operations of the Group.
He is a Chartered Accountant and holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Commerce and Administration from Victoria University of
Wellington in New Zealand. He is a member of the New
Zealand Society of Accountants, a certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and has extensive experience in corporate management,
accounting and finance. He is an independent non-executive
director of AviChina Industry & Technology Company
Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lo Wing Hung (53) has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2002. From 2005 to 2013, Mr. Lo was the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He joined the Group
as Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily in 1999. He was the Chief
Executive Officer of the newspaper group of the Company
prior to his appointment as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. Lo has extensive experience in the media
industry. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for a number
of major newspaper and television companies in Hong Kong.
He is a spokesman of The Newspaper Society of Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Judy Chan (38) has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2013. Ms. Chan is the
president of Shanxi Grace Vineyard Company Limited (“GV”),
responsible for the business development and operations for
the winery and wine business. Under her leadership, GV is
considered as one of the best wine producers from China.
Ms. Chan is also a director of Origin Holdings (HK) Limited,
responsible for the management and financial operations of
its businesses of power generation, waste-water treatment
plant, property development and investments in Indonesia.
She has extensive experience in marketing, branding and
trading in the Asia Pacific Region. Prior to joining GV since
2002, she had worked in the human resources department of
Goldman Sachs in Hong Kong. She currently serves as a
member of the Shanxi Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. Ms. Chan holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from The University of Michigan. She
was awarded the Ernst & Young — Emerging Entrepreneur of
the Year in 2010 and Entrepreneur of the Year 2010 for China
Hong Kong/Macau Region, and the Asian Wine Personality of
the Year 2012.
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Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, JP (53) has been an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
2001. She runs key offices at various public listed and private
enterprises, including managing director of Shun Tak
Holdings Limited, chairman of the board of directors and
chief executive officer of Shun Tak — China Travel Shipping
Investments Limited, director of Sociedade de Turismo e
Diversodes de Macau, S.A.R.L., and co-chairperson and
executive director of MGM China Holdings Limited. Besides
gearing her efforts in business endeavors, Ms. Ho actively
serves on a host of economic, social and public services. In
mainland China, she is a standing committee member of
Beijing Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, standing committee member of All-
China Federation of Industry and Commerce, and vice
president of China Chamber of Tourism. In Hong Kong, she
serves as the adviser of Our Hong Kong Foundation, and is
extensively involved in supporting educational programs
through her roles as founding honorary advisor and board
director of The University of Hong Kong Foundation for
Educational Development and Research, court member of
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, chairman of the
Development Committee of The Hong Kong Academy for
Performing Arts, and advisory committee member of the
School of Hotel and Tourism Management at The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Internationally, she is an executive
member of the World Travel and Tourism Council. Ms. Ho
holds a Bachelor’s degree in marketing and international
business management from the University of Santa Clara. She
received an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration from the Johnson and Wales University in May
2007, an Honorary Fellowship from The Hong Kong Academy
for Performing Arts in June 2014, and Honorary University
Fellowship by The University of Hong Kong in September
2015. She was appointed Justice of the Peace by The
Government of the HKSAR in 2015.

Mr. King Richard Yun Zing (48) has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2004. He is a
managing director of investment banking at UBS AG. He is
principally responsible for providing corporate finance
services to clients in China and Hong Kong. He has over 10
years of investment banking experience in advising
corporations, governments and entrepreneurs in financing
strategies. Previously, he was a senior member of JP Morgan’s
investment banking team in Asia, and was a member of the
board of directors of J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific)
Limited. Prior to joining JP Morgan, he held senior positions
at various renowned institutions including Credit Lyonnais
Securities Asia Limited and CITIC Pacific Limited, a Hong
Kong listed conglomerate. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics from Columbia University in New York.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lee Cho Jat (83) has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company since 2005. Mr. Lee was
awarded the “Silver Bauhinia Star” and the “Gold Bauhinia
Star” by The Government of the HKSAR in 1998 and 2013
respectively. He is currently director and founder member of
Hong Kong News-Expo Limited, president of The Newspaper
Society of Hong Kong, president of The Chinese Language
Press Institute, permanent honorary chairman of the Hong
Kong Publishing Federation and honorary chairman of Sino
United Publishing (Holdings) Limited, The Commercial Press
(H.K.) Ltd. and Hong Kong Commercial Newspapers Co., Ltd.
Mr. Lee started his career in newspaper publishing industry
after graduated from secondary school in 1952 and has over
50 years of experience in the media industry devoting to
promote Chinese culture. Mr. Lee was awarded Outstanding
Achievement Award of Hong Kong Print Awards in 1997. Mr.
Lee successfully changed traditional state-owned companies
such as The Commercial Press (H.K.) Ltd., Joint Publishing
(Hong Kong) Company Limited, Chung Hwa Book Co., (H.K.)
Ltd. and C&C Joint Printing Co., (H.K.) Ltd., into fast-
developing modernized international enterprises, which,
under his leadership, become paragons of the industry. Mr.
Lee was appointed a committee member of The Preliminary
Working Committee for The Preparatory Committee for the
HKSAR of The Standing Committee of The National People’s
Congress in 1994 and was further appointed as a member of
The Preparatory Committee for the HKSAR of The National
People’s Congress, participated in the preparation of the
establishment of The Government of the HKSAR. He was
appointed as a member of the Antiquities Advisory Board of
the HKSAR in 1999. Mr. Lee was appointed a member of 8th,
9th and 10th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. In 2009, Mr. Lee has been
elected the “Hundred of the Greats of Publishing in the 60
years of New China” which is the greatest honor in the
publishing industry in China. Mr. Lee was granted an
Honorary Doctorate of Arts from Chu Hai College in July
2011.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Kwong King Lim (60) is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group’s China operations (Publications), the Chief
Executive Officer of Sing Tao Daily overseas region, the
Editor-in-Chief of Sing Tao Daily overseas, and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kwong graduated
from the Department of Chinese Language and Literature of
Jinan University. He joined the Group in 2003. Prior to
joining the Group, he was the vice chairman of The
Newspaper Society of Hong Kong and held senior positions
in various media companies. He has extensive experience in
editorial, operations and administration.

Mr. Lai Ting Yiu (64) has been the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily and Headline Daily
since 2013, responsible for the operation and business of
these two newspapers, and is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. From 2004 to 2013, Mr. Lai was
an Executive Director of the Company. Prior to his re-
designation as the Chief Executive Officer of Sing Tao Daily
and Headline Daily, he was the Chief Executive Officer of the
magazine group responsible for overseeing the publication of
magazines of the Group. He joined the Group in 1999 as the
Vice Editor-in-Chief and afterwards, was promoted to the
Executive Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily. Prior to joining the
Group, he held key positions in various renowned media
companies.

Mrs. Mok Lau Wing Yee, Winnie (58) is the Chief Executive
Officer of the magazine group and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. She is responsible for
overseeing the publication of magazines of the Group. She
joined the Group in 2007 as the Chief Operating Officer of
the magazine group. Prior to joining the Group, she held
various key positions in the media and luxury goods
industries.

Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey (49) is a director
(Printing Operations) of the Group and also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible for
developing the Group’s printing operations and other
investments. From 2001 to 2013, Mr. Yang was an Executive
Director of the Company. He gained wealth of experience in
finance and investment arena and had participated in
numerous corporate finance activities for several listed
companies in Hong Kong as well as worked at a leading
international bank. Prior to joining the Group, he held senior
positions in Leefung Asco Printers Holdings Limited,
responsible for the group’s financial affairs and business
development.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors believe that good corporate governance
practices serve as an effective risk management for the
Company and hence, the shareholders of the Company will
benefit from the high standard of corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and complied with the CG
Code throughout the review period with deviations from
certain code provisions of the CG Code specified and
explained below.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors who
have confirmed that, during the Year, they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2015, the Board consists of 10 directors
including 6 executive directors (“EDs”) and 4 independent
non-executive directors (“INEDs”). Names and biographical
details of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” on pages 19 to 24.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company. The Board reviews and approves the objectives,
strategies, direction and policies of the Group, the annual
budget and the management structure of the Company. The
Board also reviews the Group’s performance in light of the
Group’s objectives, business plans and budgets.

The Board has delegated the responsibility of the day-to-day
operations of the Group to the management of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles and
the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”) of the Group is Mr.
Siu Sai Wo. The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are
separate. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
management and effective performance of the Board. The
CEO is primarily responsible for the day-to-day management
of the business of the Group.

All INEDs were appointed for a fixed term ending on 31
December 2016 with renewal option subject to retirement
and re-election by rotation under the Bye-laws of the
Company.
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In compliance with the code provision A.6.5, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
(the “CPD”) to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has adopted its own policy on Directors’
CPD. During the Year, the Company encouraged all Directors
to attend or give speeches at training courses, seminars or
conferences which were relevant to their respective duties
and responsibilities at the Company’s expenses, and provided
relevant materials and updates for their reading. According to
the records provided by the Directors, the Directors
participated in the following CPD programmes during the

RETTRIRXAGCS  MEERE2EBEEXER
(MFEEXER])  BRUFMEFBRIKE - A0
FEMEFNRESEERATRATEBE - ®K
FE - ANRAFSBABESHF RS M ETHERE
MIEFIRRIE - TET @k e R - NRFEIIRE - 1
AEHEREREN BRAARRAXN  ARAR
ﬂ%ﬂ%%hﬁ%T*HF'@E’Jﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁéﬁiﬁﬂ%f#@fﬁ&ﬁ
& REBEESFREEMEZIOLE  RERAFE
//\TLATT#ZEE%%E&IEH :

Year:
Type of CPD programmes
FREEXRREEER
Giving
speeches at
Attending training
training courses,
courses, seminars or Reading
seminars or conferences materials
conferences RIZHRRE - or updates
HESZIRE - WHERER BIEM B
Directors 2= MAERER BREDH EHESR
Executive Directors: HITESFE .
Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (Chairman) CREACTNEYD v/
Siu Sai Wo (CEO) RN (77 B A8 &) 4
Ho Kent Ching Tak fa] IE 12 v
Jia Hongping BT 4
Lau Chung Man, Louis 2 3¢ v 4
Lo Wing Hung & K I 4
Sy Wong Chor Fong (Note) il D) 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors: X IFHTEF :
Judy Chan bR 75 v v
Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina o] #B 38 v/
King Richard Yun Zing & T v/
Lee Cho Jat 182 v

The Board held 3 regular meetings instead of 4 as required
by the code provision A.1.1 for efficiency consideration
during the Year. The regular meetings were held to consider
and approve, among other things, the annual results, interim
results and annual budget of the Group.
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According to the code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2, the
Chairman of the Board and all INEDs shall attend the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company. The Chairman
of the Board and all INEDs were unable to attend the AGM
held in 2015 due to prior or unexpected business

engagements.

Attendance record of Directors in 2015 is set out below:

3 A oA £
TEERME

“T-REREFEMNHFELENT

REBEFRIEA6.7 REL12 EEEEERFTABEI
WITESRAHRARR ZBFAFAE ([RRBFA
€D BFEEETRLMABLIIFNTEEARTAC
T A R CAESHMARELFEARRR
T-RFBRITZBRRBAFAE -

Corporate
Audit Remuneration Nomination Governance
Board Committee Committee =~ Committee = Committee AGM
rEER
X8 ENZES FMZEE® REZES® ZBE RRBEFKE
Number of meetings T -RERIN
held in 2015 SHERE 3 2 2 1 1 1
Directors B
Executive Directors: HITEE .
Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (Chairman) {iiTE (£/E) 2/3 0/1
Siu Sai Wo (CEO) B (7THAEA) 3/3 2/2 /1 1/1
Ho Kent Ching Tak ] F1E 3/3 0/1
Jia Hongping B4 1/3 0/1
Lau Chung Man, Louis ELLib" 3/3 11 1/1
Lo Wing Hung Eox i 3/3 0/1
Sy Wong Chor Fong (Note) HEERS (f5) 1/2 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: %1/ HH{TEF
Judy Chan BRx 3/3 0/1
Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina #2318 1/3 1/2 2/2 1/1 0/1
King Richard Yun Zing STTHK 2/3 2/2 2/2 1/1 0/1
Lee Cho Jat FHE 3/3 2/2 1/1 0/1

Note: Mr. Sy Wong Chor Fong resigned as an Executive Director  fifif - fE®EEFZTB T —AF T+ A —HERTAX

of the Company with effect from 1 December 2015.

RAZHITESE -
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee and its
terms of reference are available on both the Company and
the Stock Exchange websites. The Remuneration Committee
comprised 3 members and a majority of the members are
INEDs. The Committee is chaired by Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy
Catilina, with Mr. King Richard Yun Zing and Mr. Siu Sai Wo
as members.

The Committee has adopted the model (as described in the
code provision B.1.2(c)), for which the Committee shall
determine, with delegated responsibilities, the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. approved the discretionary bonus for the EDs and
senior management based on their performances; and

. reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of
the EDs and senior management.

The emoluments of each of the Directors are set out in this
annual report on pages 111 to 113.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee and its
terms of reference are available on both the Company and
the Stock Exchange websites. The Nomination Committee
comprised 4 members and a majority of the members are
INEDs. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Lee Cho Jat, with
Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, Mr. King Richard Yun Zing
and Mr. Siu Sai Wo as members.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

(1) to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service) of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(ii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board;
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(iii)  to assess the independence of INEDs; and

(iv)  to review the Board Diversity Policy (the “BDP”) and
make recommendations on any proposed revisions to
the Board, and monitor its implementation so as to
ensure its effectiveness.

The Board has adopted its own BDP. The BDP aims to set
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. Selection
of candidates on the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective selection criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity. The Committee will
monitor the implementation of the BDP and from time to
time review it, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board, and the BDP.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Board has established a corporate governance committee
which comprises 2 members. The Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis, with the Company Secretary, Ms.
Ip Ka Yee as a member.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

() to develop, review, implement and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board
so as to comply with the legal and regulatory
requirements;

(ii) to review and monitor the training and CPD of
Directors;
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(iii)  to review the contribution required from a Director to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Company;

(iv)  to develop, review, implement and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable
to Directors and employees; and

) to review the Company’s annual Corporate Governance
Report.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. reviewed the annual Corporate Governance Report
contained in the Company’s 2014 annual report; and

. prepared materials and updates relevant to the
Company’s business for Directors’ reading in
compliance with the code provision A.6.5 on Directors’
CPD.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee and its terms
of reference are available on both the Company and the
Stock Exchange websites. The Audit Committee comprised 3
members and all of them are INEDs. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. King Richard Yun Zing, with Ms. Ho Chiu
King, Pansy Catilina and Mr. Lee Cho Jat as members.

The primary duties of the Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and assessing their independence and
performance, reviewing of the effectiveness of financial
reporting processes and internal control systems of the
Group and reviewing the Group’s financial information and
compliance.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. reviewed the audited accounts for the year ended 31
December 2014;

. reviewed the interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2015; and

. reviewed the internal audit reports including the
review and evaluation of internal controls.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration payable to the Group’s
external auditors, Messrs. Ernst & Young, is set out below:

/\_LLI_/\—/-\—\

IExEE #&m

BB ETE =

RAEE » BN TAEEZINEZBEN oK 5HE =
TSR BN 58N T

Fee payable

Services rendered Rtz RB ERER

HK$'000

TR

Audit services iR 4,189

Non-audit services FEEERE 165

Total &t 4,354
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEEERZH

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing EEHANTFVRFERUEMBBRA/ERE © &%

the financial statements for each financial year which give a ENBBRREABRRAMWRRAEE 2 FIEAR - A

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and in
presenting balanced and clear interim and annual financial
statements, other financial statements and announcements of
inside information disclosures. The reporting responsibilities
of the external auditors are set out in this annual report on
pages 49 to 50.

The Board is responsible for the system of internal control of
the Group and reviews the effectiveness of the system of
internal control through the Audit Committee. The Internal
Audit Department independently reviewed the major
operating and financial control of the Group on an on-going
basis and covered all major operations of the Group on a
rotational basis. The Internal Audit Department reported
twice each year to the Audit Committee and the Directors on
significant findings on internal controls.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ip Ka Yee has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since 2012. She is a full-time employee of the
Group, has day-to-day knowledge of the Company and has
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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/@%Zﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁii@é%@%i‘% A EB XA PIBL A B
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NAME
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company sets out the shareholders’ rights on:

()

(b)

How shareholders can convene a special general
meeting (the “SGM”)

Pursuant to the bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws
and section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981
(as amended) (the “Act”), shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company with voting right can submit a written
requisition to convene a SGM for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.

The written requisition must:
() state the purposes of the SGM;

(i) be signed by the requisitionists (which may
consist of several documents in like form each
signed by one or more requisitionists); and

(iii)  be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

Such SGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a SGM.

How to put forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings

Pursuant to sections 79 and 80 of the Act, shareholders
can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at a general meeting (the “GM”) if they:

(i) represent not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
GM; or

(ii) are not less than 100 shareholders.
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(©)

The written requisition must:

(D state the resolution, accompanied by a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt
with at the GM;

(2) be signed by the requisitionists (which may be
contained in one document or in several
documents in like form);

3) be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the Company Secretary not less than 6 weeks
before the GM in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less
than 1 week before the GM in the case of any
other requisition, however, if after a copy of the
requisition requiring notice of a resolution has
been deposited at the registered office of the
Company, a GM is called for a date 6 weeks or
less after the copy has been deposited, the
copy though not deposited within the time
required as referred to in the above shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for
the purposes thereof; and

(4) be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto.

How shareholders can propose a person for election
as a Director

As regards proposing a person for election as a
Director at a GM, please refer to the procedures
available on both the Company and the Stock
Exchange websites.

(©
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(d) How enquiries be put forward to the Board

The Company has already adopted an effective and
efficient way of receiving enquiries from its
shareholders through the corporate e-mail as well as
its principal office in Hong Kong and therefore, will
continue these channels of communication.

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board by
addressing them to the Company Secretary (whose
contact details are set out below). The Company
Secretary will properly forward the enquiries to the
Board for appropriate action:

The Company Secretary

Sing Tao News Corporation Limited

3/F., Sing Tao News Corporation Building,

3 Tung Wong Road, Shau Kei Wan, Hong Kong
Email: investor@singtaonewscorp.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year. The memorandum of association
and the bye-laws of the Company are available on both the
Company and the Stock Exchange websites.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 12
to 18 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of the
directors’ report.

The Group is committed to enhancing governance, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the
environment and giving back to society in order to fulfill
social responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. The
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have significant impact on the operations of the Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in this
annual report on pages 51 to 176.

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK4 cents per
ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 December
2015 payable on 20 May 2016 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 12
May 2016. Together with the interim dividend of HK2 cents
per ordinary share paid to shareholders on 22 September
2015, the total annual dividend will amount to HK6 cents per
ordinary share for the financial year (2014: HKG cents).

EEEWmE

BEEEREAKEEBEC
ifﬁZi#ﬁ&%%%’fZEﬁ%#&%

—HF+-A=t+—B1t

FEXEBREHORE

ARBZETEBEBRIEER  EX2MBRRZE
EXRBAHBENPBRKRME40 - AEEZ T E2XK
HERAFEANL BEAE

RIBEBRTUROIMNRSFTRE - ZFEBHHE—
ki BREARERHNEZRR LA
A =mE i & AR B E A E A R R EROEB
R AIAESRAFREREISA[EREN®LD
12 - A RBRAEETEREN—HD °

AEERNETER  RERERERMEER - 4%%%
BEROELHE EMETHEETLERAIFEE
R AREEBTHAKEZ i%ﬁﬁiiﬁwaﬂﬁfﬂ
RRRER

%l‘zx&ﬂltu\
ZFE@%ZI —HRF+ZA=+—HIFEZ &
RAEERE EZEﬁﬁ‘%Hﬂixﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ\ﬁiiﬁ%SlIl%E °

EEEERN T NFRA-tTHER -ZE—RFHh
A+ZAZIAARRRRREMAZBRRREEE
TFE+-A=+—BILEEY KB SRR
BB BRRZZE—AFNAZZ+ZHRAKREIR
FERHIR B ST B 2B A BEE 22 FR

SRS REREAREI(ZF—MF : 68() -

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED  Annual Report 2015



Report of the Directors

EEEWmE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on page 180 of this annual report. The
summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year are set out in notes 29 and 30
to the financial statements, respectively.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to its existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 (as amended), amounted to approximately
HK$611,051,000 (2014: approximately HK$667,000,000), of
which HK$34,644,000 has been proposed as a final dividend
for the year.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$455,000.
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Report of the Directors

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate amount of revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers represented
less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue. The aggregate
amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors or their close associates or the shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the number of issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles

Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak

Mr. Jia Hongping

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis

Mr. Lo Wing Hung

Mr. Siu Sai Wo

Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong (resigned on 1 December 2015)

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Judy Chan

Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina

Mr. King Richard Yun Zing

Mr. Lee Cho Jat
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According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Ho
Tsu Kwok, Charles, Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, Mr. Lo
Wing Hung and Mr. Siu Sai Wo will retire by rotation, and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”). Details of the Directors’ standing for re-election are
set out in the circular to the shareholders sent together with
this annual report.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Ms. Judy Chan, Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy
Catilina, Mr. King Richard Yun Zing and Mr. Lee Cho Jat, and
as at the date of this report still considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 24 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings of the Company every year. Other
emoluments are determined and approved by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests of the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the

=

EERBETRAENES

TFEVE Mo R RN T

register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, were as follows:

(a)

(b)

Interests in the Company

@ HEARQARNES

Number of ordinary shares and underlying
shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEEERREBAROEE - SO RESME

RS

R-F-—AF+_A=1T—H ARBEERESTT
BABREARRE MEREAE (& RESMAEK
IR RG] %XV ED) ity MkAEER G
o BAREBE S LBGROIE3S2FARRAETH

Percentage

Interests in of the

underlying Company’s

Personal  Corporate shares issued voting

Name of director Note interests interests (Note 2) Total shares

EHEERG ERDBE BT

RS NERERE

EEnE fifat BAER DE R (Bz%2) wEY  RozEIH

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles  {aJ{ B4 4 - 426,197,500 830,000 427,027,500 49.34%

Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak AIEEEE - - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.23%

Mr. Jia Hongping BALTEE 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 4,000,000 0.46%

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis Bt £ 3,000,000 - 2,000,000 5,000,000 0.57%

Mr. Lo Wing Hung ExEEE 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000 2.08%

Mr. Siu Sai Wo Eugibates 7,872,500 - 4,000,000 11,872,500 1.37%
Interests in associated corporations of the b) EARABNHEE EE P RERS

Company

As at 31 December 2015, Mr. Lo Wing Hung, an
Executive Director of the Company, had the following
corporate interests in shares of the following
associated corporations of the Company:

BB AR

RZZE—REF+ZA=+—H  ARFHITE
S EOKIESRAER T IR R B AEEOAE 2 B

Percentage

of the associated

corporation’s

Total number issued

Name of associated corporation Notes  of shares held voting shares

LZAEEEE

BEZRG BONERER

HEEE AR ff et BERE RozEAH

BasBuy Company Limited EtmEREERAR 4 2 100%
(formerly known as MonkeyBuy Company (A7 MonkeyBuy Company

Limited) Limited)

Bastille Heat Book Store Limited BB NEEGRAA 4 1 100%

Bastille JC Bookcity Limited EBtoERERERAR 4 2 100%

Bastille Post Company Limited (“BPCL") BELtasmERAR ([ELak]) 3 20,500,000 70%

Bravo Link Limited (“BLL") BHHERBBRAR ([BH]) 4 1 100%

Bravo Link (HK) Limited BHGER (B8) BRAA 5 1 100%

Ticker Asia Limited 4 2 100%
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Notes:

RS

The corporate interests of 426,197,500 shares were held
by Luckman Trading Limited (“Luckman”), which was
beneficially owned by Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles.

These interests represented share options granted under
the share option scheme of the Company which was
adopted on 23 May 2012, details of which are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements.

The corporate interests of 20,500,000 shares were held by
Bastille Post Holdings Limited (*BPHL”), which was
beneficially owned by Mr. Lo Wing Hung.

Mr. Lo Wing Hung was deemed to be interested in these
shares held through BPCL, which was owned by BPHL
and the Group as to 70% and 30% respectively.

Mr. Lo Wing Hung was deemed to be interested in the
one share held through BLL, which was wholly-owned by
BPCL.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company had any interest and short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Further details of the schemes are disclosed in note 30 to the
financial statements.

The Directors have estimated the values of the share options
granted during the year, calculated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model as at the date of grant of the share

EEEWmE

B ERTE

ARRBITEREN S E /YA KB ZXBKINE
HERM AR MRS ERS TE  ZFHEZHE
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L

options:
Number of options Theoretical value
Grantee granted during the year of share options
ARA REARHZBERERR BREEREE
HK$°000
FHET
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles AR S 830,000 365
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak A IEfB A 2,000,000 880
Mr. Jia Hongping B FnE 2,000,000 880
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis Bk E 2,000,000 880
Mr. Siu Sai Wo b 4,000,000 1,760
Other employees (in aggregate) HibgEB (&) 27,300,000 10,374
38,130,000 15,139

The Black-Scholes option pricing model is a generally
accepted method of valuing share options. The significant
assumptions used in the calculation of the values of the share
options are further detailed in note 30 to the financial
statements. The measurement dates used in the valuation
calculations were the dates on which the share options were
granted.

The value of a share option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the variables
used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of
a share option.

Save as disclosed above and in the share option schemes
disclosures in note 30 to the financial statements, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER TERFREHEMA L 2R
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2015, those persons, other than the NZE—FRF+_A=1+—H BEARAIBREZEEFNR
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had the EAEEPIE 336 (8B T EEFEEZMATEESE - TFA
interests of 5% or more of the issued voting shares of the T (RRFZEERTSTHRABRIN EELRATID
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by BT B EZRERR D 5% 3 A _E 2 fEzs -

the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Percentage
of the
Capacity Number of Company’s
and nature ordinary issued voting
Name Notes of interest shares held shares
HERRERT
FHKR P HERRE
i1 fitaE EEME EERHE BHBDL
Luckman @) Beneficial owner 426,197,500 49.25%
BEEBEAA
Hong Kong Tobacco Company EHEEEFR A A @) Deemed interest 426,197,500 49.25%
Limited (“HK Tobacco”) ([BEBEE]) BRI 2 s
Stagelight Group Limited Beneficial owner 81,959,500 9.47%
E\mlﬁﬁﬁA
Notes: BifaE
(1) The interests of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, held through D A A B 5 A 335 38 — R 4% %‘Jxﬁ.%ﬁZ%\\EﬁitX
a controlled corporation, duplicate with those disclosed (é%& BITHA BO R | — BN NPT #E R 2 7
in the section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests” @AAR °
above.
2) Pursuant to an option agreement dated 20 June 2001 and 2 *EH% Luckgmanéiiﬁ/’é@iﬁ" g E/\_ —
eight supplemental agreements entered into between ”Tiz_ﬁgégﬁj JE/Q\
Luckman and HK Tobacco on 19 July 2002, 19 July 2003, +1H 7i%i¢tﬂ +hnA -
19 July 20006, 19 July 2007, 19 July 2008, 19 July 2010, 19 AThA = t%tﬂ Jrj'LE el
July 2012 and 19 July 2014, respectively, HK Tobacco was tATHE = TELATAE N
granted an option to purchase from Luckman 33,000,000 E/E‘tﬂ s &* P%%;EE?jLEET—LZA
ordinary shares of the Company. Under Sections 317 and 5 45 5 TWJE ' é‘i’% %Ei B8 i *’Eﬂ A [
318 of the SFO, HK Tobacco is deemed to be interested ];E\C,kmar}éﬁz\$kf\ A& B 257000\300%@& ° *ETJ;
in all the 426,197,500 ordinary shares of the Company ﬁi%&/ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁu%ﬁﬁ\&3}8% ' Eﬁ%&%%ﬁﬁ%
held by Luckman. A Luckman P A 2 280 426,197,500 A A 7
B s o
Save as disclosed herein, the Company had not been notified BRAN T EEIN - RARLNEBEMATRER
of any other interests or short positions being held by any NRZ Bty KRR E g mgoRk g o

person in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Bastille Post Holdings Limited (“BPHL”) is a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Lo Wing Hung (“Mr. Lo”), an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lo, through BPHL, holds 70%
interest in Bastille Post Company Limited (“BPCL”). The
Group indirectly holds the remaining 30% interest in BPCL.
BPHL and BPCL (together with its subsidiaries and associates,
the “BP Group”) are therefore connected persons of the
Company as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Group had the following transactions
with BPCL and the BP Group (as the case may be):

1. On 19 December 2014, the Group and the BP Group
entered into the Group Master Services Agreement for
a term of three years commencing from 19 December
2014 pursuant to which the Group agreed to, from
time to time, provide the BP Group with various
services, including but not limited to the following
categories:

() Sharing of administrative services relating to
accounting services support, office
administration support, human resources
support, information technology support,
general company secretarial support and legal
support between the Group and the BP Group;

(b) Provision of office space by the Group to the
BP Group to accommodate its employees;

(© Provision of advertising spaces by the Group to
the BP Group for its own use;

(d)  Provision of advertising spaces by the Group to
the BP Group (as an advertising agent) for its
sale;

(e) Distribution of books published by the BP
Group through the Group;

€] Provision of information technology system
services by the Group to the BP Group for the
development of websites, mobile sites and
mobile applications;

EEEWmE

BERXS

Bastille Post Holdings Limited ([ BZ#IZRIEM ) B—
FHBRARARMITESEKESE ([EEE]) 28%A
BRE c ERAFEBELTHRIERFECLORER
REN(TELHH®]) 70% #am - AREREFEE LW
WER T HI30% 5 - BETAHIERRE Lok GERE
WBAARBE R T [BELMREE]) BHibtizEm
RAEVABFEETREARRIZEEALT -

RAER  AEFBRETHHREELHORER (RE
AERmE) BATRS

1. RZZE—WOF+ZA+NA - AEEHEETH
REBITVE-_Z—NF+ AT LHEHA
H=FNAEBMARSEHE Bt A%5ER
ETEAEIMREBRESERS - 2ER
TRAATHER

(@ ASBEEIHHREECHARAHES
ARSI - MAETBSUR - ANE
RXIE - BRBBE - —RARMWE
RIS 1R BOR R IR EVTTIRRTS

b  FEEHERAZTEETEIOHREER
NERMEBT ¢

(©  AEBERHEESRETE RSB
HEEM

(d FAEERHESHRETELINREE
(TERESERIE) UHHE

(e FBRAEESHEETHRERLRCE
£

O AEERFEEABREGERE TELH
WEEAERZ A - TTEREE KR
PEMARER ;
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(2) Provision of content being owned by the Group
to the BP Group;

(h) Provision of editorial services (including art and
production) by the Group to the BP Group; and

1) Provision of marketing related services and
products by the Group to the BP Group.

On 19 December 2014, the Group and the BP Group
also entered into the BP Group Master Services
Agreement for a term of three years commencing from
19 December 2014 pursuant to which the BP Group
agreed to, from time to time, provide various services
to the Group with various services, including but not
limited to the following categories:

(a) Provision of advertising spaces by the BP
Group to the Group for its own use;

(b)  Provision of advertising spaces by the BP
Group to the Group (as an advertising agent)
for its sale;

(© Distribution of books published by the Group
through the BP Group;

(d)  Provision of content being owned by the BP
Group to the Group;

(e) Provision of editorial services (including art and
production) by the BP Group to the Group; and

) Provision of marketing related services and
products by the BP Group to the Group.

At any time during the terms of the Group Master
Services Agreement and the BP Group Master Services
Agreement, the Group and the BP Group may enter
into individual agreement(s) in relation to any of the
services contemplated under the Group Master
Services Agreement and the BP Group Master Services
Agreement upon and subject to the terms and
conditions thereof.
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Report of the Directors

The Company set the annual caps for each of the
following categories of the transactions for the three
years from 19 December 2014 to 18 December 2017
(both dates inclusive):

(a) Provision of various services by the Group to
the BP Group; and

(b) Provision of various services by the BP Group
to the Group.

During the year, the approximate aggregate service
fees received or paid by the Group and the annual
caps in respect of each category of the transactions
are set out below:

EEEWmE

ARALATBERBERBH T —NF+=
A+NWBE-Z—+F+-A+N\RB(EEM
REFEER) IE=FFTVFE LR -

(@ AEEREBTHHREERESERS
&
(b  BEEwHmEERARERESERS -

AEBNAFEREBR 5 ERB IR
A RIRG &R R FE LRESIT

Approximate
aggregate
services fees Annual cap for
for the financial the financial
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
Category 2015 2015
BMOBRREER FELRBE
BE-Z-—1F —®-hf
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-A
5l B BUFE BB
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFHET FHET
Provision of various services by AEEME TR REFERHESERS 1,946 10,500
the Group to the BP Group
Provision of various services by EEHREERAEBRESERS 1,460 3,500

the BP Group to the Group

The Directors considered that the transactions
mentioned in sub-paragraphs 1 and 2 above will
benefit the Group in maximizing operational efficiency
and management effectiveness, enhance versatility in
content production and distribution, and provide
increased exposure in the internet related media
business, to further strengthen the Group’s operations
and maximize the Group’s media business value.

Under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the
transactions mentioned in sub-paragraphs 1 and 2
above constituted continuing connected transactions
(“CCT”) of the Group for the year which require
disclosures in this annual report. Full details of the
transactions were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 19 December 2014.

EERRMENFE 1R 2R 2 ZEFERH K
BNRAEERSEERELEEME 125
NEEERDIHNZ K E&EE%HH%&%
EBLRART  WE—FREREENER
@ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%%%@o

BRI ETRAIE14AE - B EXE 1R 25 BAT
LZMIA%%%KEIF$¢fZ%%%

REG(IFHERERS])  WANAFHRIEE -
ZERGNEHAH AR ER S —MF
+Z AT ABHEMAEPHEE -

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED  Annual Report 2015



Report of the Directors

=

RS

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on
the Group’s CCT for the year ended 31 December 2015
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditors have issued a letter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the Group’s
CCT mentioned above in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules confirming that nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe the
continuing connected transactions:

(H have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iii)  have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual
caps disclosed in previous announcement of
the Company.

All independent non-executive directors of the
Company have reviewed and confirmed that the
Group’s CCT for the year were entered into:

(D in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements applicable for the CCT in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

3. On 23 October 2015, Sing Tao Holdings (BVD) Limited
(“STHL"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the share subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with BPHL
and BPCL, pursuant to which STHL and BPHL agreed,
on a 30:70 basis, to further subscribe for, and BPCL
agreed to allot and issue 2,400,000 and 5,600,000
ordinary shares in BPCL for cash consideration of
HK$2,400,000 and HK$5,600,000 respectively, subject
to the terms and conditions of the Subscription
Agreement (the “Subscription”). After the Subscription,
BPCL is still owned by the Group and Mr. Lo as to
30% and 70% respectively.

The Directors considered that while the trend in the
industry towards new media is becoming increasingly
significant, hence the Group has appropriately started
to place more focus and resources to develop its new
media business. In view of the business development
potential of BPCL, the further subscription of shares in
BPCL by the Group aligns with the Group’s business
strategies to further develop its internet related media
business.

Under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the transaction
mentioned in sub-paragraph 3 above constituted a connected
transaction of the Company for the year which requires
disclosure in this annual report. Full details of the transaction
was disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 23
October 2015.

Save as disclosed above, there were no connected
transactions or CCT, which were required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules, entered into between the Company
or its subsidiaries and a connected person during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the Group’s connected transactions and CCT
subsisting during or at the end of the year are disclosed in
the section “Connected transactions” above. Save as disclosed
above, none of the Directors or his or her connected entity
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangement or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during or at the end of the year.

EEEWmE

3. RZE—RAFT+A-+=8 " ARRzHE:
& WIE A A Sing Tao Holdings (BVID) Limited
(28 ]) BE L HRIZRRE LRI
— IR m R E R ((RERE]) - RIERED
FEEESA R - 2B TR ME LRI E
BIR3070MW LI A EE —PRE - MELH
WEEMRE RETH T RS BIE 3£ 2,400,000
1% % 5,600,000 Bz + 3R & X AE 7 Bl A 2,400,000
P IT 1 5,600,0008 7T ([ BERE]) - REBER
BiE BINRDBErSERESEDFIES
30% K 70% HEws o

EEARERTEELESHHEBNBE AR
TRZE  ARAEBECRBEENRAES
BAMERANBEREMKEBER - BER
BromEBRREN  AEEE-TRBED
THYIRAOBD 15 A 7N SR B RO SR 7% SRAR (£ ELE —
PERROBERARERY

RIBELETHRAE AT - BLEXEIDBRAZ X518
RARRRAFEZAERS - WARKFREE °
ZRGNEMAHARFERN _T—AFTA=-+=
B IS NS R HEE o
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business during the year are set out in note
36 to the financial statements. In relation to those related
party transactions that constituted connected transactions as
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed
in the section “Connected transactions” above.

PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least

25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares were
held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report

T N Az BT S

Ernst & Young ZXEFENER Tel E:E: +852 2846 9888
EY& i 22/F, CITIC Tower BEREDIRAEEISR Fax 8 E: +852 2868 4432
7 1 Tim Mei Avenue h{ERE2218 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Sing Tao News Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sing
Tao News Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 51 to 176, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

HESHBEEEARATZERR
(REFEFMH A BFR )

BAEERHENESIZVCENESTHEEFERA
A ([EafA)) REMBARNEEMBE®E « RS
MBRREE_T—RAF T+ -_A=1t—"BNEEME
PRARMBEZALFENEABREER  FEEEW
2R FEEREPR KARIRERULTIES
AR EME R AR -

EENRAVBRRAAENER

ERREFEABRERLSTHASRMNEEY
B EERNNEB R AURD 2 WERERELRE I
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FIAE AR R BRIE S - DA S MR E TR
FFEEE R M S B E A SRR -

BB EE

RPN ETRREBERMANEZHZFRAMBREIE
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90 fFRIZ SR RS - MILA A EEAL B A o AP
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To the shareholders of Sing Tao News Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
23 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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Year ended 31 December 2015 #HE—T—HF+-_HA=+—HIFFE

Notes 2015 2014
e —E-1F —E-MF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FHET
REVENUE PN 5 1,864,200 1,986,679
Cost of sales HER A (1,169,666) (1,266,355)
Gross profit EF 694,534 720,324
Other income and gains/(losses), net Hg A Rzt (F518) 2
SRR 5 (864) 18,036
Distribution expenses IR (284,789) (292,562)
Administrative expenses 1T (336,117) (319,899)
Other expenses H A s (21,849) (3,895)
Finance costs & A AR 6 (207) 221
Share of profits and losses of: JE(RTRHIA A& R M B 18
Joint ventures AEDE 11,252 21,434
An associate — B EE N A (4,629) (3,588)
Impairment of amounts due from JEW & & ERIBERIE
joint ventures 17 - (755)
Impairment of loan to an associate A — RSN RIRENERRE 18 (1,057) -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT A 7 56,274 138,874
Income tax credit/(expense) Fris®iiEe,/ (%) 10 6,006 (24,707)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE ZA2AREE ABEEERF
TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY 62,280 114,167
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE KA TEEREZEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF iR g RIER — OBIl)
THE COMPANY - (HK cents) 12
Basic 2R 7.28 13.62
Diluted e 7.25 13.49

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED  Annual Report 2015



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

rartmElmK

Year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—F

—OF+ZA=1+—HULFE

Notes 2015 2014
s —g-5F  —T-pmF
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FET T#ET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEEEF 62,280 114,167
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hitt2EWE (B8)
(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) to LAT& HARS PT B B2 58 0 R
be reclassified to profit or loss in BarHMm2E
subsequent periods: Wz, (F518)
Available-for-sale investments: f HERE :
Changes in fair value 1@ """"" AEp 19 34 250
Income tax effect B - =
(34) 250
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBIINEBHIEH £58
foreign operations (52,173) (27,359
Net other comprehensive loss to be LAf& BRfE R BE B ¥ 0 JRIE
reclassified to profit or loss in B EM 2 EEEFE
subsequent periods (52,207) (27,109)
Other comprehensive income not to be — LAEEIE T EF D REER
reclassified to profit or loss in B A 2 W
subsequent periods:
Gains on property revaluation MEE G 13 26,434 26,170
Income tax effect FrigtHi & 13 (5,961) (4,869
Net other comprehensive income not to  bAf& HAfE 188 BT 90 JEE 18 a5
be reclassified to profit or loss in B B A 2 T W o R
subsequent periods 20,473 21,301
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR BB FEAMREERTE
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (31,734) (5,808)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR ~ FAARBEEABEFEZE
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO WA
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 30,546 108,359
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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31 December 2015 R-ZFE—HF+=-A=+—H

Notes 2015 2014
&t —E-HF —ZT—gF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET F#ET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 13 813,063 818,514
Investment properties wEYE 14 41,292 44,799
Goodwill B 15 - 857
Other intangible assets HinmL & E 16 120 8,336
Investments in joint ventures AEEREZIRE 17 70,760 103,137
Investments in an associate R—REBERR 2% E 18 - 5,729
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 19 8,247 8,281
Deferred tax assets IRIEFATHE B 28 16,976 15,013
Other deposits paid HEE#ime 50,350 55,237
Total non-current assets EmBEEMLE 1,000,808 1,059,903
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories EE 20 49,663 77,886
Trade receivables Wé”ﬁlaﬁ%ﬁ( 21 454,171 492,870
Prepayments, deposits and other TARFRIE - Re REAM
receivables L@WMIE\ 22 47,568 40,149
Financial assets at fair value through RAFELABREREY
profit or loss IS EE 23 52,619 5,941
Loan to an associate A—EEE QRN E R 18 4,543 -
Tax recoverable Al e F A 6,865 1,547
Cash and cash equivalents HekHeEHEER 24 844,164 826,095
Total current assets MENEERE 1,459,593 1,444,488
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBEE
Trade and bills payables ERRR R E® 25 68,777 92,641
Other payables and accruals F A A FRIE K JE AT RUE 26 222,421 234,470
Tax payable JEI T8 3,138 56,152
Finance lease and hire purchase REERA NEES L
contract payables FE{ 5RIE 27 324 971
Total current liabilities mBEERE 294,660 384,234
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE 1,164,933 1,060,254
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERREBEEZ
LIABILITIES EEHE 2,165,741 2,120,157
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A FBIKAR

31 December 2015 WR-ZE—H&F+f+_-A=+—H

Notes 2015 2014
BtaE —E—-EHF —E—-MEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET F#ET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERRBEEZ
LIABILITIES EEHE 2,165,741 2,120,157
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Provision B 26 10,800 -
Finance lease and hire purchase BERA MBS KR RIE
contract payables 27 317 2,325
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIAAE 28 93,743 61,850
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEEE 104,860 64,175
Net assets BESE 2,060,881 2,055,982
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the ZA/NIEZ 2= DN
Company FEAG Mt
Issued capital BT 29 173,072 167,809
Reserves G 1,887,809 1,888,173
Total equity P ER 2,060,881 2,055,982

Siu Sai Wo
pudil
Director

EE

Lau Chung Man, Louis

BIfh 3

Director

BF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZF

NS

Attributable to owners of the Company

E Z N\ l|\EII|\

—AFFZAZTHILFE

ALREEAER
Available-
Issued Share for-sale
ordinary  premium Share Asset investment  Exchange
share  account Contributed option revaluation revaluation fluctuation Other  Retained Total
Notes capital surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  feserve  feserves profits equity
BEfT &
EBR kit BhRi B REEf  ENRD
i3 ks BER HABR i EfRE i B EtEE REEN  BEAE
HKS$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK§000  HKS000 — HKS000 — HK§000  HKS000  HKS$000  HK$'000
TEr  TEr TErL  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEr TEn TEn
(Note29)  (Note29)  (Note 31)
(i) (W) (W)
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-ME-A-A 167,546 710 407,890 9,618 108,791 6,277 15817 19960 1260287 1996,89
Proft for the year REEET - - - - - - - S L4167 11467
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ FEEM2ARE/
for the year: (BR):
Gains on property revaluation MEEENE - - - - 21,301 - - - - 21,301
Changes in fair value of AHHERERTE
available-for-sale investments, SHMEHE
net of tax - - - - - 250 - - - 250
Exchange differences on transhtion  AE I EBHER
of foreign operations EE - - - - - - @) - - (39
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ER2ElE/
for the year (B8 2% - - - - 30 B0 (2139 - 14167 10839
Issue of ordinary shares BTEER 29 203 1,248 - (494) - - - - - 1,017
Final 2013 dividend paid BRE-Z-=F 1
KRS - - - - - - - B33 (3509
Interim 2014 dividend ZE-RERARE 11 - - - - - - - - (678D (678D
At 31 December 2014 R-B-MF
tZA=+-H 167,809 19% 40789 9,124 130,092 0527 (11,542) 19960 13241648 2,055,982
# Retained profits have been restated for the proposed final # 1%%@/m%lja§g$¢F£§\jﬁﬁﬂﬁ,)ﬁz ALEsS

2014 dividend in accordance with the current year’s
presentation, which is described in note 2.4 to the

financial statements.

KRB SIEHES

ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁzm
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

== N\ 7 “‘
ARREBDE

Year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—F

/\\/T\

—OFtZA=1+—HULFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALAREAER
Available-
Issued Share for-sale
ordinary  premium Share Asset investment  Exchange
share  account Contributed option revaluation revaluation fluctuation Other  Retained Total
Notes capital surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  feserve  reserves profits equity
BEf AfE
LER kit EhR BE REER EXEE
Wit Re iR AABR i Ef@R i M EMBE REEN BR4E
HK$000  HKS$000  HKS$000  HK$000 — HK§000  HKS000  HKS000 — HK$000 — HK§000  HK$000
TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TET  TEr  TEr TEr TR TEn
(Note29)  (Note29)  (Note 31)
(i) (W) (W)
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1E-A-B 167,809 198 407,80 9,124 130,092 0,527 (11,542) 19960 1,324,164 2,055,982
Proft for the year AERET - - - - - - - - 02,280 02,280
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ EF £t 2EME/
for the year: (E8) :
Gains on property revaluation EEAE - - - - 20473 - - - - 2473
Changes in fair value of AHERERTE
available-for-sale investments, BYNRHE
net of tax - - - - - (34) - - - (34)
Exchange differences on transhtion ~ AEEINEBHER
of foreign operations £% - - - - - - (52,173) - - (52173)
Total comprehensive incomey/(loss) EE2ENG/ (BE)
for the year 2% - - - - 4B CRCVAY) -0 3054
Transfer of other reserve upon disposal & — A&
of a then associate REREMEE - - - - - - - (19,960) 19960 -
Issue of ordinary shares BTLER 29 5,203 2,797 - (7,720) - - - 20,339
Equity-settled share option REEEERE 30
arrangements ZH - _ _ 5777 _ _ B ~ B 577
Transfer of shate option reserve upon A MR R IE (435
the forfeiture of share options RRERE - - - (291) - - - - 91 -
Final 2014 dividend paid FE-E-MF 1
RS - - - - - - - - (A0 (3S509)
Interim 2015 dividend “E-RfPERE 1 - - - - - - - - s ansd
At 31 December 2015 R-R-E%
tZA=1-A 173072 24,755 407890+ 6,889% 150565 6493*  (63,715) - 1354932 2,060,881
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated * BLHEERPEK TS BRARIOEEH

reserves of HK$1,887,809,000 (2014: HK$1,888,173,000) in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN PAN
FEIRE

mER

Year ended 31 December 2015 #HE—T—HF+-_HA=+—HIFFE

Notes 2015 2014
ftat —E-AF —_E—MF
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FHET T#ET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBCHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax o 258 AT Vg 56,274 138,874
Adjustments for: EAEHT5IHE
Finance costs A& A A 6 207 221
Impairment of amounts due from R G &1 EFIERE
joint ventures - 755
Impairment of loan to an associate m)— & A RIR MM ERURE 1,057 -
Share of profits and losses of joint BiEEERERmFR
ventures &8 (11,252) (21,434)
Share of profits and losses of an JEME— B & R a2 @A &
associate 518 4,629 3,588
Bank interest income |ITFEHA 5 (4,891) (3,622)
Investment income TEWA 5 (1,782) (3,182)
Dividend income from listed equity KELETRAKRE ZRE
investments WA 5 (208) (484)
Dividend income from unlisted REFEMAHEEREZ
available-for-sale investments A& S HA 5 - (2,853)
Fair value losses/(gains), net on: NTEEE, (W) 2 FHE -
Investment properties wEME 5 (883) (4,020
Financial assets at fair value BN ELAERE B
through profit or loss AE 5 7,976 3,107
Derivative financial instruments — PTHEERITE-THEEMH
transactions not qualifying BIg 2R 5
as hedges 5 (1,077) (3,278)
Gain on disposal of items of HEWE  WEKZHIER
property, plant and equipment Al & 5 (214) (436)
Depreciation e 7 81,080 77,954
Amortisation of intangible assets mICEESH 7 1,126 1,125
Impairment of intangible assets BILEERME 7 8,590 -
Write-off of goodwill B AR 7 857 -
Impairment of trade receivables Y BR TR B 7 2,348 2,255
Write-off of trade receivables UK BR FR M BR 7 7,524 -
Equity-settled share option expense S ERERY 7 5,777 -
157,138 188,570
Decrease in inventories FERL 28,223 6,661
Decrease in trade receivables, RUERF ~ TANRIE e Xk
prepayments, deposits and other H At YR IR
receivables 21,478 49,699
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets HAFELABREZTG
at fair value through profit or loss BEmMD, (M) (54,654) 48,8006
Decrease in derivative financial THEERIERD
instruments 1,077 3278
Decrease in trade and bills payables, JEASF BR R % SRR A Ko HL ) B AF
and other payables and accruals FIE N FE R FOE R (29,802) (18,159)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2015 #BZE _—_ZT—AF 1+ _-_A=+—HILFZF

Notes 2015 2014
fffat —ZE-hfF —Z -
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FHET T
Cash generated from operations REXBMEERE® 123,460 278,855
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHEEBEH (21,967) (19,913)
Overseas tax paid BEGINEIE (7,030) (3,251
Net cash flows from operating activities (E&ERKEELEZ RS REFH 94,463 255,691
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REERCZHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BT E 4,891 3,622
Investment income FE WA 1,782 3,182
Dividends received from joint ventures KEaLEREZEREE 29,700 33,705
Dividends received from listed equity KELETRARE 22 WARE
investments 208 484
Dividends received from unlisted B EMAHEERE Y
available-for-sale investments 2R B - 2,853
Purchases of items of property, plant BEME  BELZEEE
and equipment (1,526) (33,338)
Deposits paid for purchases of items of HEEWHX - BEEREERZ
property, plant and equipment [mE:¢ s (39,550) (55,237)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE  WEKZHEER
property, plant and equipment P53k I8 4,294 1,056
Increase in amounts due from joint FEU & & (> 2 FRIFIE hN
ventures - (688)
Additional investment into an associate R — R RIE IR E (4,500) -
Acquisition of an intangible asset BERLEE (1,500) -
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged REERRIHIHBA
time deposits with original maturity ARz EE AT HEFR
of more than three months when A, ()
acquired (20,822) 31,668
Net cash flows used in investing WEXBERACZRERE
activities Pt (27,023) (12,693)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEETHHERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 1T BIRFTSFEIA 29 20,339 1,017
Capital element of finance lease rental BEEAOBRZER
payments 2B (2,655) (1,128)
Interest paid [k 1P S) 6 (156) (147)
Interest element of finance lease rental REE ML FE
payments Fh 1 6 (1) 7D
Dividends paid 2R R (51,763) (50,290)
Net cash flows used in financing REREERA R
activities mEREE (34,2860) (50,622)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE—ZF

mm/\iﬁj&
—AF+—A=+—HIFE

mER

Notes 2015 2014
it —-Ef -T-mF
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FHET T#ET
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBESEEBEBEM
EQUIVALENTS b=} 33,154 192,376
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHZREKIAEEE
of year EHH 772,366 600,563
Effect of foreign exchange rate fER@a) s w8
changes, net (35,907) (20,573)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZESRESEME
END OF YEAR HE 769,613 772,366
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEEER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEERDT
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTHE R 24 450,107 375,661
Non-pledged time deposits BT HER 24 394,057 450,434
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in MM R AP ER & &
the statement of financial position B EEIER 844,164 826,095
Non-pledged time deposits with REVSE 2 EA A #8iE = (& A
original maturity of more than three 2 R E BT R
months when acquired (74,551) (53,729)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in REMEERAMMNER S &
the statement of cash flows ReEHEIAR 769,613 772,366
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 15 R R B ot

31 December 2015 W_F—haF+=-A=+—H

2.1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sing Tao News Corporation Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the
following principal activities:

*  media
e property holding
* investment holding

In the opinion of the directors, Luckman Trading
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, is the Company’s controlling shareholder.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance relating to the preparation of
financial statements. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, leasehold land and buildings,
derivative financial instruments and certain investments,
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2015. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

B1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=—FE—AF+=-HA=+—H

2.1. B BHE (58)

FEREZEE

RAMBHRREEARTREWMBAR (FH[ A
SEDBE_T-AFt-_A=T-HLFEZ
TG - B AR AARR R EE K HEEEHH
ER(BRABEER)  EAKEBE2EEKR

BEMAESmMARZDBNEARKZEEA
Hom - WEARIERHWIRETES (B

EAKREERAENEBRTESNRBEEBH
RN FEZ T OMmET - BIESIR S -

EARARNAEEKEEEE DR PRESTKZEN
FORFIAUERN > EFEEETHEHRIRES
MAENE  AEESEEMAERBEEREN
B

() BFREZTHMRREFAANGRLTY

(b EAERLPELNERN &

(© AEBEORRENBERRKE

F B A B AR Az MmO HE HEER
WHRA—HEABEREE - HBARZEEHA
SEBGEGE AR RA AR  YHERS
AEREZRSEHERIEZKRIE -

BEakEMEERENSERT D ERBRAS
B REEA AN - BI85 BOF
ERESEHRARHN AEEABZT AR ZAR
SERNMBEEREE  #m KA Xk
ReRENGakAER2BUEHE -
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2015 W_F—haF+=-A=+—H

2.1.

2.2,

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries
below. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards
for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of each amendment is

described below:

(a)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions
from employees or third parties to defined benefit
plans. The amendments simplify the accounting for
contributions that are independent of the number of
years of employee service, for example, employee
contributions that are calculated according to a
fixed percentage of salary. If the amount of the
contributions is independent of the number of years
of service, an entity is permitted to recognise such
contributions as a reduction of service cost in the
period in which the related service is rendered. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as
the Group does not have defined benefit plans.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments
that are effective for the current year are as follows:

*  HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an
entity must disclose the judgements made by
management in applying the aggregation
criteria in HKFRS 8, including a brief
description of operating segments that have
been aggregated and the economic
characteristics used to assess whether the
segments are similar. The amendments also
clarify that a reconciliation of segment assets
to total assets is only required to be disclosed
if the reconciliation is reported to the chief
operating decision maker. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group.

e HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets: Clarifies the
treatment of gross carrying amount and
accumulated depreciation or amortisation of
revalued items of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group
as the Group does not apply the revaluation
model for the measurement of these assets.

B1 15 ¥R R B ot
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

*  HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures: Clarifies
that a management entity (i.e., an entity that
provides key management personnel services)
is a related party subject to related party
disclosure requirements. In addition, an entity
that uses a management entity is required to
disclose the expenses incurred for management
services. The amendment has had no impact
on the Group as the Group does not receive
any management services from other entities.

(¢c) The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments
that are effective for the current year are as follows:

o HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that
joint arrangements but not joint ventures are
outside the scope of HKFRS 3 and the scope
exception applies only to the accounting in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement
itself. The amendment is applied prospectively.
The amendment has had no impact on the
Group as the Company is not a joint
arrangement and the Group did not form any
joint arrangement during the year.

*  HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement: Clarifies
that the portfolio exception in HKFRS 13 can
be applied not only to financial assets and
financial liabilities, but also to other contracts
within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 as
applicable. The amendment is applied
prospectively from the beginning of the annual
period in which HKFRS 13 was initially
applied. The amendment has had no impact on
the Group as the Group does not apply the
portfolio exception in HKFRS 13.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

*  HKAS 40 Investment Property: Clarifies that
HKFRS 3, instead of the description of ancillary
services in HKAS 40 which differentiates
between investment property and owner-
occupied property, is used to determine if the
transaction is a purchase of an asset or a
business combination. The amendment is
applied prospectively for acquisitions of
investment properties. The amendment has had
no impact on the Group as the Group had no
acquisition of investment properties during the
year.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments
to the Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange relating to the disclosure of financial
information with reference to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current financial year.
The main impact to the financial statements is on the
presentation and disclosure of certain information in the
financial statements.

B1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=—_FE—AF+=-HA=+—H

22 S HERNKE 228 (F)

o BEBEERELORREYE  EB
ARREBYBWMEERNE 35 (MIE
FREERFE 40 EWB RGO
i RS R EYFEREAXEERY
RINEERZGBBEEELEDTA
Bf o ZIEFTRERREANKBIRED
% - IR AEERFAITBKBRED
¥ FIZERT WE S A S B RBAERA

B 48R
5%

BEAN - AR B AT 6 E RN R BB P
BHERMMBERBREN LHRAER (2EE
BRBED (F622F)) - HUBHRNETEZE
ERBEREANETERN25 RKE

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED  Annual Report 2015



Notes to Financial Statements

R RS e

31 December 2015 W—_F—hAF+=-A=+—H

2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

HKERS 9 Financial Instruments*
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture!
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and Consolidation Exception’

HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations'

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts’®
HKFRS 15 Revenute from Contracts with
Customers*
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation'
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants'
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
(2011) Statements'

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'
2012-2014 Cycle

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018
3 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for
its annual financial statements beginning on or after

)

1 January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to
the Group
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the standard.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 require that an acquirer
of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity
of the joint operation constitutes a business must apply
the relevant principles for business combinations in
HKFRS 3. The amendments also clarify that a previously
held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on
the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a
scope exclusion has been added to HKFRS 11 to specify
that the amendments do not apply when the parties
sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are
under common control of the same ultimate controlling
party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition of
the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition
of any additional interests in the same joint operation.
The amendments are not expected to have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group
upon adoption on 1 January 2016.

B1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=—_FE—AF+=-HA=+—H

2.3, EAEEARER BB BHRELER (&)

ERE AN EE Y RS E BB R
£—HERHOT -

RoT—mENR - BERHHARBHEEH
TR RIS 0% Y BAIRA - LB IAEE
2 B B A LA R B BB B 5 R 2 3038
RE BRI EAE R 2 BEARE - %
ARSI ADEREE - AR R R 5
B - AEEEHE = F—/\E— B — LR
BB R 0% - AEE A AT EEYE
BB 1T o

BEMBRESERFE 10K L EB S ERIE 28
SZAER] (T ——%F) #H BB BRE LI E
10 R BB G ERIE 28K (T ——F) 2H
EFRRAEREBERQENRZHANEELE
FOTEMEREN TR - ZFETHRE &
KREERHEBMERSLERAFZHANEEHERT
BBR—IAEGE  ERIZBREREE - E
RPHERIBR—BEBNEER - HZXHE
ERRE S ERNZIREENBRE AR - HEE
NTHEBREENZBERGERRNERR
IR o ZEERIABER - AEEEHE —T—KX
F— A — BERAZFER -

BEMBHREERE 115 (BETAR) R EHBL
2 (B HAKRLHEBB —TRER) i
BHVARBEBYBRELNEIRAELKE
PHAERIR A - ZFER] FEBR HRAKL LR E
AP #5 A B R 25 1A WO A R SR RIS & o e RE S ME
@ M A FEE G R ES TSENTE 1o
ERPBRESERE 117N —IHBERS -
FIREAFRAENENST (BRE2BRER) K
AR — BRAS TR0 RO EHRE I 2 T8 - % FERT
TR - ZFETERANEE AL E N
A R MR AR R R AL & i (T BRI M 21 © 7%
FEAFERR T —R"E—A—BR®E - HT
SHAEENMBRARKBELEAZE

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED  Annual Report 2015



Notes to Financial Statements

B 15 R R B ot

31 December 2015 W—_F—hAF+=-A=+—H

2.3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede
all current revenue recognition requirements under
HKFRSs. In September 2015, the HKICPA issued an
amendment to HKFRS 15 regarding a one-year deferral
of the mandatory effective date of HKFRS 15 to 1
January 2018. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on
1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 15 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(ii) that specific line items in the statement of profit or
loss and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated,

(iii) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present the notes to financial statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method must be presented in aggregate
as a single line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in
the statement of financial position and the statement of
profit or loss. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3.

2.4.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects
a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from
operating a business (of which the asset is part) rather
than the economic benefits that are consumed through
the use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method
cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and
equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon
adoption on 1 January 2016 as the Group has not used
a revenue-based method for the calculation of
depreciation of its non-current assets.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

2.3.

2.4.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The
Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is
included as part of the Group’s investments in associates
or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other
cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of
the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value
of the Group’s previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its land and buildings, investment
properties, derivative financial instruments and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets,
investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

B1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=—_FE—AF+=-HA=+—H

2.4 TESTTBEREE (8)

FMBEEZRE (F)

REBREIR - B EREETRBRZ AR
ZREBBRE TR HRRAREDRRD - MHRE
R A AIRE SR - 2AERZEBE
(AEMETHBEERIN) REBBRRNBIAE
FIEEZ MR AR IR E BT -
HEZBETNSHARHEENBEFEAL RAHE
RBEEET T IARER 2 REE (R EAT
E ) BRI ZREBRINEES 2 H
At AR X - BRIFEEMDREMKERYIR - R
BERERR - DIREZAELEEZBBE
BRI

BEAL
ETIERT  Bl— R RRAREERE

(@ BEAKEZEABERZHRENK B BHE
ERSERAE - RZEA -

() HAEBEE LS S ERES

() HAEEEHEERATE &

(i) BRAEBEHEFARNEREIEABD
KB :

(b)) WRERAATEMBE - MIXERRREER
REARRAR

) ZHEEMAKERF-SBEKE :

(i) X—ERRS TR (22 —EE
RMERF - B AFKRE XK B AR
M EbEREEDE

(i) MREEHESHARE=ZTNEEDLE

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED  Annual Report 2015



Notes to Financial Statements

B 15 R R B ot

31 December 2015 W=_F—hAF+=-HA=+—H

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is
charged to the statement of profit or loss. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Leasehold land

Not depreciated

Over the shorter of the lease
terms or 2% to 5%

Buildings 2% to 5%

Plant and machinery 6% to 50%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease

terms or 20% to 33%

Furniture, fixtures, 10% to 30%
equipment and others
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of
the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives represent
purchased data library, copyrights, trademarks and
domain names which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 20 years.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life
represents a motor vehicle registration mark, which is
tested for impairment annually individually. Such
intangible asset is not amortised. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the statement
of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate
of charge over the lease terms.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at
fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this
category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes
in market conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
to the statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of
the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term
are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest
rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

* the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
expenses in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried al cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss - is
removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for
sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less

than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income
continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest
income is recorded as part of finance income.
Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed
through the statement of profit or loss if the subsequent
increase in fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the statement of

profit or loss.
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as

appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, certain accruals, derivative financial
instruments, and finance lease and hire purchase

contract payables.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or
loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group invests in certain derivative financial
instruments, such as forward currency contracts and
equity and commodity contracts, for trading purposes.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets
when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when
the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the actual cost,
first-in, first-out basis or weighted average basis, where
appropriate and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

*  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

* when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to

be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a) advertising income, when the advertisements have

been published or broadcasted;

(b) circulation income, when the newspapers and

magazines have been delivered;

(c) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold;

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(e) from the rendering of services, when the services
have been rendered,

(f) interest and investment income, on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset;

(g) securities transactions are accounted for on a trade
date basis; and

(h) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Employee benefits
Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using the Black-Scholes option pricing model,
further details of which are given in note 30 to the
financial statements.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. When awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the
award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for
any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes in Hong Kong and overseas for those
employees who are eligible and have elected to
participate in the schemes. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the participating employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the schemes. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds. When an employee leaves the
Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted ORSO retirement
benefit scheme in Hong Kong or other retirement benefit
schemes overseas prior to his/her interest in the Group’s
employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group may be reduced by
the relevant amount of forfeited contributions. In respect
of the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), the Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits
(continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific amount for the employees in
Mainland China, pursuant to the local municipal
government regulations. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
In prior years, final dividends proposed by the directors
were classified as a separate allocation of retained
profits within the equity section of the statement of
financial position, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Following the
implementation of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), proposed final dividends are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because bye-law 140 of the Company’s bye-
laws grants the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and joint ventures are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
an investment property, and has developed criteria in
making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out
separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold
separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties (continued)

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.
Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
Group has to exercise judgement in the area of asset
impairment, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an
event has occurred that may affect the asset value or
such event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by the management
to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale
and recognises movements of their fair values in equity.
When the fair value declines, management makes
assumptions about the decline in value to determine
whether there is an impairment that should be
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. In addition,
certain of the Group’s unlisted investments included in
available-for-sale investments were stated at cost less
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the
opinion that the fair values cannot be measured reliably.
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there are any indicators of impairment for these
unlisted investments. These unlisted investments are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
In determining the recoverable amount, management
considers various factors, such as value in use, available
data for disposing of such assets and other factors
relevant to these unlisted investments. The carrying
amount of available-for-sale assets was HK$8,247,000
(2014: HK$8,281,000).

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes impairment provision for trade
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of trade receivables. Impairment provision is made for
trade receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation on the recoverability of trade receivables is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of trade receivables and
impairment provision in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed. The aggregate carrying
amount of trade receivables as at 31 December 2015
amounted to HK$454,171,000 (2014: HK$492,870,000).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets
are tested for impairment annually and at other times
when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Estimation of fair value of properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar lease or transactions. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.
In making its judgement, the Group considers
information from fair market value by reference to
independent valuations. This conclusion is supported by
independent professional valuers who were engaged by
the Group during the year to perform valuations on the
Group’s properties. The carrying amounts of land and
buildings and investment properties at 31 December
2015 were HK$501,781,000 (2014: HK$493,158,000) and
HK$41,292,000 (2014: HK$44,799,000), respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the media segment publishes and distributes
newspapers, magazines and books to readers in
Hong Kong, Canada, the United States of America,
Europe and Australia, and sells the respective
content of such publications in Hong Kong and
Mainland China;

(b) the trading segment trades consumer products and
licenses a distribution right; and

(c) the others segment comprises the Group’s Internet
and information consultancy services, investment
and property holding business together with
corporate expense items.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax
is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before
tax except that finance costs are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets and tax
recoverable. Segment liabilities exclude finance lease
and hire purchase contract payables, tax payable and
deferred tax liabilities.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2015 W=_F—hAF+=-A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued,) 4. EEHIER (4
Year ended 31 December 2015 Media Trading Others Total
BE-_S-RF+-A=+-HLEE e g5 Hith &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
FiE7 FiE7 FiE7 T
Segment revenue: DEUWA
Sales to external customers RSNAEFHE 1,854,040 1,202 8,958 1,864,200
Intersegment sales DEEKRE Z HE 547 - 210,297 210,844
1,854,587 1,202 219,255 2,075,044
Reconciliation: $iR
Elimination of intersegment sales DE 2 HE RS (210,844)
Revenue WA 1,864,200
Segment results PEEE 80,989 (14,666) (9,842) 56,481
Reconciliation: R
Finance costs BMERR (207)
Profit before tax B 258 i s A 56,274
Segment assets PEEE 1,593,273 61,004 782,283 2,436,560
Reconciliation: R -
Corporate and unallocated assets RAFNKDEEE 23,841
Total assets BEEE 2,460,401
Segment liabilities PEEE 244,762 1,675 55,561 301,998
Reconciliation: i
Corporate and unallocated liabilities RANADHAR 97,522
Total liabilities BfRMEE 399,520
Other segment information: HittpHER :
Share of profits and losses of: FEIETFI R Bla A R & 18 -
Joint ventures EEhE 10,132 - 1,120 11,252
An associate —EEE QA (4,629) - - (4,629)
Impairment losses recognised in the BarPRRNHEES
statement of profit or loss (11,995) - - (11,995)
Write-offs recognised in the BaRPEROME
statement of profit or loss (857) (7,524) - (8,381)
Depreciation and amortisation IE RHH (69,159) (459) (12,588) (82,206)
Bank interest income RITHBUA 1,854 298 2,739 4,891
Investments in joint ventures REELEZERE 54,575 - 16,185 70,760
Investments in an associate R—RBEARZRE 4,543 - - 4,543
Capital expenditure* BARREZ 27,405 25,508 52,916
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * §$E¥ﬁ§@ﬁfﬁ*\‘\§%¥ B KRR BEA
plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment B UARIGEME -

properties.
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31 December 2015 N=_FE—AF+=-A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4., REQIER (&
Year ended 31 December 2014 Media Trading Others Total
BE_T-—NMFE+-A=+—HBIFE HEe g5 HAh, B&f
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET THET TET TET
Segment revenue: ZEWA
Sales to external customers RINARFIHEE 1,973,081 4,498 8,500 1,986,679
Intersegment sales DEEREZHEE 460 - 186,053 186,513
1,974,141 4,498 194,553 2,173,192
Reconciliation: IR
Elimination of intersegment sales DEEISE 2 HE R H I (186,513)
Revenue WA 1,986,679
Segment results DEEE 138,509 (1,046) 1,632 139,095
Reconciliation: iR
Finance costs BEMKA (22D
Profit before tax B2 A A 138,874
Segment assets PEEE 1,710,024 142,621 635,186 2,487,831
Reconciliation: B
Corporate and unallocated assets REFRDEEE 16,560
Total assets EERE 2,504,391
Segment liabilities PHEE 275,237 164 51,710 327,111
Reconciliation: IR -
Corporate and unallocated liabilities RAFMKDEEE 121,298
Total liabilities AERE 448,409
Other segment information: HittpHEH
Share of profits and losses of: FEIE TR A& R EE
Joint ventures AETE 19,303 - 2,131 21,434
An associate —[EBE QT (3,588) - - (3,588)
Impairment losses recognised in the BaiRPHERHHESR (3,010)
statement of profit or loss - - (3,010)
Depreciation and amortisation B R (71,208) (383) (7,488) (79,079)
Bank interest income RITFEUWA 2,223 496 903 3,622
Investments in joint ventures REELEZRE 87,100 - 16,037 103,137
Investments in an associate R—EBE Rz RE 5,729 - - 5,729
Capital expenditure* BN 68,020 48 19,349 87,417
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,  BARXBEREYE  BERERE - BEE

plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment

properties.

B ARIREME -
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31 December 2015 T =

—#F+=A=+—A

4.

)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. EEHIER ()
Geographical information hEE R
(a) Revenue from external customers (@ FIREFHE
2015 2014
“E-Hf — 4
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Hong Kong and Mainland China FHERFE (FER)
(country of domicile) 1,428,917 1,504,842
North America SIS 371,495 399,232
Australia, New Zealand and Europe SN - e R BUM 63,788 82,605
1,864,200 1,986,679
The revenue information above is based on the it ACE R B TR R 1 A o
locations of the customers.
Non-current assets (b) FERENEE
2015 2014
—E-RE —meE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T#ET
Hong Kong and Mainland China EERPE (BEH)
(country of domicile) 779,121 799,543
North America ibE 203,217 243 247
Australia, New Zealand and Europe BN~ o UM 1,494 2,100
983,832 1,044,890

The non-current asset information above is based

on the locations of the assets and excludes deferred

tax assets.
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Notes

to Financial Statements

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/(LOSSES), 5.

NET

Revenue represents the net advertising income, after

trade discounts; circulation income, after allowances for

returns; net invoiced value of goods sold, after

allowances for returns and trade discounts; gross rental

income received and receivable and the value of

services rendered during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains/(losses),

net is as follows:

1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=_FE—AF+=-A=+—H

WA~ At AR WEs (B518) FHE

WABRFARERAFRE (THRESFI) -
FITWA (CHBRERERYE)  CEEMERRFE
(BEHIRREERESHM) R RERESRA
BN R IRE RS2 EBE -

WA~ E A RMas (EE8) F5E.2 5
T

2015 2014
—E-EHF —E—-F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Revenue ON
Advertising income BERA 1,492,148 1,568,861
Circulation income ESHON 239,835 270,010
Radio broadcasting advertising income EEERESKBA 23,821 23,704
Sales of consumer products HEREEM 698 40
Gross rental income HeWALE 4,148 5,061
Content sales and news service income RAHEE R ERBRA 27,922 31,678
Others Hits 75,628 87,325
1,864,200 1,986,679
Other income Haplr A
Bank interest income RITHE WA 4,891 3,622
Investment income BEBA 1,782 3,182
Dividend income from listed equity investments KB ETRARE 2R EKA 208 484
Dividend income from unlisted available-for-sale REFEMAHDERE ZBREKA
investments - 2,853
Others Hitp 7,869 10,931
14,750 21,072
Other gains/(losses) Eﬂﬁ'&ﬁ/(ﬁﬁ)
Fair value gains/(losses), net on: N ERE (BE) 2558
Financial assets at fair value through BATECZABR R
profit or loss U BEE (7,976) (3,107)
Derivative financial instruments — transactions TTHESBMIA-IFEEH
not qualifying as hedges BRZRS 1,077 3,278
Investment properties (note 14) REWE (e 14) 883 4,020
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME  BERIEER
plant and equipment 2 Wz 214 436
Foreign exchange differences, net &R ERE  FRE (9,812) (7,663)
(15,614) (3,036)
Other income and gains/(losses), net Hipg AR Uezs,/ (E518) 358 (864) 18,036
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31 December 2015 W=_F—hAF+=-A=+—H

6. FINANCE COSTS BB R A

2015 2014
“E-Hf —T—MEF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITEFRRBEZFE 156 147
Interest on finance leases BMEHEF L 51 74
207 221

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX RREL A R

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

AEEBBADAMEMSR, (GTA) TFI&IA :

(crediting):
Notes 2015 2014
ftaE —E-1f —EF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET TET
Cost of inventories sold BHEFERAR 392,453 458,889
Depreciation e 13 81,080 77,954
Amortisation of intangible assets* B EESE 16 1,126 1,125
Write-off of goodwill* P B + 15 857 -
Impairment of intangible assets* B EERE" 16 8,590 -
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEE S
Current year REE 4,545 4,700
Over provision in prior years BEFEBEER (30) (343)
4,515 4,357
Minimum leases payments under RELLHEME N2 &E
operating leases HEE 45,762 41,998
Employee benefit expense (including EEBMNAX (BHEEEWE
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (FIzE8)) -
Wages, salaries, allowances and I& - #HH  EZREMEF
benefits in kind 648,720 657,356
Equity-settled share option expense PR 4t B I AR i 2 30 5,777 -
Retirement benefit schemes RIRRERE B R
contributions 29,378 29,291
Less: Forfeited contributions Rz R - -
Net retirement benefit schemes RKEFGT IS 5O
contributions** 29,378 29,291
683,875 686,647

Annual Report 2015
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Notes to Financial Statements

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=_FE—AF+=-A=+—H

AEEZBHENENE R, GTA) : (&)

(crediting): (continued)

Notes 2015 2014

fifat —E-FHF —ET—mF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET T

Gross rental income HelALzE (4,148) (5,061)
Less: Direct outgoings W EERX 3,585 5,216
Net rental loss/(income) MAeEE/ (WA) FE (563) 155
Impairment of trade receivables® JE WS BR SRR (B 21 2,348 2,255
Write-off of trade receivables* JE LA BR S B 7,524 -

EE3

The amortisation of intangible assets, write-off of
goodwill, impairment of intangible assets, impairment
on trade receivables and write-off of trade receivables
for the year are included in “Other expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

At 31 December 2015, there were no forfeited
contributions available to the Group to reduce its
contributions to retirement benefit schemes in future

years (2014: NiD).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant

to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (¢) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

* FREBVEEEE BMENK BEEER
18 - RURRSOR E & USRI M AR AR
BHRAEMF A -

#= R-E-—RAFtT_A=1—8 YEAHEAE
B A HR R SR AR AR AR M E T I R 2 08 it
FE(ZT—F  E\) o

EEME

AEREEMEREFTEMEIZIAERABE
FEMARUMAT ETRAD - FERBEDIE
383(D(a) * (b) ~ () RO ERAT (HEEEH
SER) RPIE 25BN -

2015 2014

—B-1F —E-F

HK$’000 HK$°000

FiE7 FE7

Fees e 600 619
Other emoluments: Hile -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ZUMREYDET 26,742 26,095

Discretionary bonuses BIETEA 2,210 3,813

Employee share option benefits EEBERERT 1,916 -

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFET BB 5R 118 173

30,986 30,081

31,586 30,700
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31 December 2015 W=_F—hAF+=-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

During the year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option schemes of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above
directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fee paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follow:

EEME (E)

RAFEE - RIBASE 2 BIE S
FLEL AN B R T JE R PR A -

FTES
FHIEHE

REATEHRERMTTE30 - ZFNEBHREAERRRD
ERZBREAABEERE L BHEE - MRA
FEFABBHRRZEVEAALXZEZME

WEA -

(a) BIFHITEES

FRMBLIFATEEINZ2EBENT

2015 2014

—E-Hf —T—MEF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FEx THT

Ms. Judy Chan BRs 2t 120 120
Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina L+ 150 150
Mr. King Richard Yun Zing ST E 180 180
Mr. Lee Cho Jat THELE 150 150
600 600

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2014: Nil).
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31 December 2015 N=_FE—AF+=-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEME (&)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors b)) HITEERIHTES
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and Employee benefit
benefits in Discretionary  share option scheme Total
Fees kind bonuses benefits contributions remuneration
- 3] k& BAREN

#E  RENEN ML BRERY fE e EE
HKS$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
Fir FEn FEr FiEr FiEr -

2015 ZE2-1f
Executive directors: HEE:
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak WEBLE - 1,475 47 354 18 1,894
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles EELE - 9,362 255 147 - 9,764
Mr. Jia Hongping BATRAE - 1,687 43 354 46 2,130
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis Eliyeits - 3,329 105 354 18 3,806
Mr. Lo Wing Hung B RE - 2,511 79 - 18 2,608
Mr. Siu Sai Wo Rt AL A - 6,513 1,681 707 18 8,919
Mts. Sy Wong Chor Fong HERRRT - 1,865 - - - 1,865
- 26,742 2,210 1,916 118 30,986
2014 b3
Executive directors: BTER:
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak EELE - 1,007 55 - 14 1,076
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles WEELE - 9,494 505 - 8 10,007
Mr. Jia Hongping BUTRE - 1,580 74 - 100 1,754
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis Elieits - 2,870 275 - 17 3,162
Mr. Lo Wing Hung Bk E - 2,502 135 - 17 2,654
Mr. i Sai Wo [ ]ugilbistia - 6,489 2,701 - 17 9,207
Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong EERF L - 2,153 08 - - 2,221
- 20,095 3,813 - 173 30,081
Non-executive director: FHES:
Mr. Ho Ching Tak, Kent [ EE%E 19 - - - - 19
19 20,095 3,813 - 173 30,100
There was no arrangement under which a director FANMBESEHEIREREZETAME 2L
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the T PUF ) o

year (2014: NiD).
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31 December 2015 W=_F—hAF+=-A=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three directors (2014: three directors), details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above; and
two non-director employees (2014: two non-director
employees). Details of the remuneration of the
non-director highest paid employees are as follows:

ReHFMNELES

FREBEFHOARABE=NEE(—F
—mE: SEEE) (XS HERR N LA
8): RMGFEERA (—F— M : MiHE
EEE) - ANFEERSHUOEEZMSH
B

2015 2014

“E-1F —_T-mF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET TET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EULREDER 10,852 11,070
Discretionary bonuses B IEAL 208 405
Employee share option benefits EEERERT 332 -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRREFIET EIHER 36 34
11,428 11,509

The number of non-director highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

e BATEMNZ FESHSHMOEES A
T

follows:
Number of employees
EEAH

2015 2014
—E-1F —T—mF
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 % 7T £ 5,000,000 74 7T 1 1
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 775 £ 7,000,000 7 7T 1 1
2 2
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10. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group

1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=_FE—AF+=-A=+—H

10. FI5%

FENSHIRFAREBEL BT ERBS®
TR 16.5% (ZF—MF : 16.5%) B RE M - RHE
fl [ 2 FERR B M) 2 TR IR D IR AR SR B TS K
BZBRZBITHEE -

operates.
2015 2014
—E-f%F ZE-E
HK$’000 HK$°000
FBT TFET
Current: BIER -
Charge for the year: FAZH
The People’s Republic of China: i ARHRE -
Hong Kong B 21,187 20,132
Elsewhere EHibib @ 7 7
Elsewhere Hnif= - 2,980
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFED/(B5) BE (50,993) 168
Deferred (note 28) ERE (M5 28) 23,793 1,420
Total tax expense/(credit) for the year FARBHESL (Er)BE (6,006) 24,707

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to
profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
charge/(credit) at the effective tax rates, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory
tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

BARNBRERBOMBRARRAERRBEE
BB 2EEREAE 2 ERARGB NS, (B
B) ZBEMX (ER)  REREHREAEZHR
X, (ER) 28 - ARBABE (AVEE
BR) EERT R ZERINT
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

10. FS%L (48)

Australia,
New Zealand
Hong Kong Mainland China North America and Europe Total
BH - HEW
b HER% 1% REM At
HK$'000 %  HK$000 %  HK$000 %  HK$000 %  HKS$000 %
TiEn TiEn TiErn Tiéx Tiéx
2015 Z8-1f
Profit/(loss) before tax BRI/ (BB 81,185 (7,009) 151 (18,053) 56,274
Tax at the statutory tax rate RETHEHEZHE 13,396  16.5 (1,752) 250 (222)  (147.0) (4,233) 234 7,189 128
Adjustments in respect of current
tax of previous periods ISz g BRERE (161)  (0.2) (6) 0.1 (50,826) (33,659.6) - - (50,993)  (90.6)
Profits and losses attributable to joint RELER-RBELRT
ventures and an associate ElhER 766 09 (280) 40  (3,141) (2,080.1) - - Q6 @)
Income not subject to tax BEMHZBA (1,353) (LY) (63) 0.9 (1,001)  (662.9) - - (2,417) (43)
Expenses not deductible for tax ARz FR 4688 58 987  (141) 1522 1,007.9 2772 (154) 9969 177
Tax losses utilised from previous periods ~ EFMNAHE 2 HEEE (2,767)  (3.4) (83) 12 - - - - (2,850) (5.1
Tax losses not recognised Va2 HBESR 8,763 108 1142  (16.3) - - 1,52 (85 11447 203
Temporary differences not recognised TEETBELES 271) (03 56 (0.8) 63) (417 46 (0.2 (233)  (04)
Effect of withholding tax at 15% on the R15% REERZBARE
distributable profits of the Group’s “‘Miﬁlb SANBAT
Canada subsidiaries B nive % - - - - 24539 16,2510 - - 24539 436
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group's BAEEERREHE Y
effective rate HERY/ (E%) 23,058 284 100 (29,192) (19,3324) 127 (0.7 (6,000 (10.7)
Australia,
New Zealand
Hong Kong Mainland China North America and Europe Total
B HER
B BERL b3 REM Glil
HK$000 % HK$000 %  HK$000 %  HK$000 %  HK$000 %
AT AT T AT AT
2014 —E-mF
Profit/(loss) before tax REEEN/ (BR) 131,214 (1,117) 21,711 (12,934) 138,874
Tax at the statutory tax rate RAERENEZ B 650 165 9 250 6,755 311 Q703 209 B4 184
Adjustments in respect of current
tax of previous periods AR 8 BRERAR (13 0D - - 303 14 - - 168 0.1
Profits and losses attributable to joint RELER-RABELRT
ventures and an associate [ElpER 718 0.5 (6533 417 (5,984) (275 - - (5799 (42
Income not subject to tax BRMH 2 HA My 06 192 172 (452) (VAY; o 05 (1433 (10)
Expenses not deductible for tax MIHBZRR 1,270 10 1429 (1279 1,613 74 253 (194) 6,825 49
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B AHRE 2 KR (2608 (20 (094) 621 - - - (3322 (249
Tax losses not recognised ﬂfﬁ%ﬁﬁ}ﬁigf 2313 18 205 (183) - - - - 2518 18
Temporary differences not recognised TERA EREER 2% 0.2 71 (6.4 3 - - - 329 0.2
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group's BAEEERHEHE Y
effective rate HERs/ (58) 2w 13 700 2238 103 2600 20 264707 178
The share of tax attributable to joint ventures and an aEbER—HEE QR EIETRIER 3,933,000 78
associate amounting to HK$3,933,000 (2014: T (ZE—M4F : 6,514,000/870) * BT ARG
HK$6,514,000) is included in “Share of profits and losses HRAN[EEEEDER —BEE DTN L E

of joint ventures and an associate” on the face of the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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11.

12.

1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=_FE—AF+=-A=+—H

DIVIDENDS 11.  RE
2015 2014
—E-Hf —T-MEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Interim — HK2 cents (2014: HK2 cents) T - FREBR 2 B
per ordinary share (ZZ—UEF : 27%8() 17,254 16,781
Proposed final — HK4 cents (2014: HK4 cents) R R B B — TR BAR 4751l
per ordinary share (ZZ—UE : 475() 34,644 33,562
51,898 50,343

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amounts is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the Company, as used in
the basic earnings per share calculation. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

12.

AREE 2 FOR R B RR BZRZ AR R IR PR fE A
RBFRELE - HTAHEE -

RREEBERERE ABESRER

FRENG NS BIRFANRA R EBRERSH
AN BB J2 F N E 37T & Ak 2 It F 1 Bat
.

BREEEN SR HRARAESRERNENZ
FARRREBREFEAREENE - 578
W FTA 2 BB PO B A EBRER S
FIAZERERITZEBEHAE - ARBRRE B
BN BN B REHE ) 2 B BB
BTk Rk AR B AR E BT -
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. RATEEBRRESE AEEEIER (&
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per

share are based on:

BRREARNEE BN TR T EAE

CE

2015 2014
“E-Hf —T—MEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Earnings Pl
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the AR E@BEREFH AEMEF B
Company, used in the basic earnings per share STEBRERER
calculation 62,280 114,167
Number of shares
RO &E
2015 2014
—E-RfF —T—0%
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
Shares i)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in FREHETEBRRMETSERE
issue during the year used in the basic earnings STEERERET
per share calculation 855,403,330 838,146,591
Effect of dilution — weighted average number of By E - TR INE
ordinary share: FHY
Share options Rk 3,430,820 8,172,102
858,834,150 846,318,693
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=_FE—AF+=-A=+—H

13. Y% - BENKE

Furniture,
Construction Plant  Leasehold fixtures,
Land and in and improve-  equipment Motor
buildings progress  machinery ments  and others vehicles Total
REME K- RE-
THREF HEBIE BERES kg REREM RE &t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FAET FAET FAET FAET
31 December 2015 “E-15f+-F=1-H
At 31 December 2014 and ~ RZZE-WE+-F=1+-8
at 1 January 2015: k=ZF-1E-A-H:
Cost or valuation RAESEE 493,158 - 647,343 82,163 213,723 10,591 1,446,978
Accumulated depreciation  23HTE - - (368,314) (70,846) (186,153) (3,151) (628,464)
Net carrying amount RETE 493,158 - 279,029 11317 27,570 7,440 818,514
At 1January 2015, net of ~ RZE—1F—A—HHk%
accumulated depreciaion  ZFHTE : 493,158 - 279,029 11,317 27,570 7,440 818,514
Additions RE 269 8,022 20,309 13,051 11,782 2,730 56,763
Disposals hrkS - - (314) (17 (2,212) (1,537 (4,080)
Depreciation provided FRNERE
during the year (14,951) - (43,430) (8,658) (11,306) (2,735) (81,080)
Surplus on revaluation ERER 26,434 - - - - - 26,434
Exchange realignment EHEE (3,129) - - 11 (223) (125) (3,488)
At 31 December 2015, net of R-E-AF+-A=+—H
accumulated depreciation 1R 2EHHTE 501,781 8,022 235,594 16,282 25611 5,773 813,063
At 31 December 2015: R-E-RF+-fA=1+-R:
Cost or valuation KAESEE 501,781 8,022 666,989 95,088 200,977 9,190 1,482,047
Accumulated depreciation R E - - (411,395 (78,800)  (175,360) (3,417) (668,984)
Net carrying amount BHFE 501,781 8,022 255,594 16,282 25,611 5,773 813,003
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31 December 2015 W=_F—hAF+=-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. Y% - MENFZE (&
Furniture,
Construction Plant  Leasehold fixtures,
Land and in and improve-  equipment Motor
buildings progress  machinery ments  and others vehicles Total
BEME &M %8
IHRE? HEIE HBERES 5 REREM AE At

HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HK$000 — HKS$000  HKS000  HK$000
TEL T T T THET T THET

31 December 2014 “E-ME+=A=1-H

At 1 January 2014: RZE-mE-FA—H
Cost or valuation KAEREE 373,129 92,464 623,380 78,040 209,269 6,950 1,383,232
Accumulated depreciation  RFHTE - - (328,496) (66,223) (179,357) (3,624) (577,700)
Net carrying amount BEFE 373,129 92,464 294,884 11,817 29912 3,326 805,532

At 1January 2014, net of ~ —E—TF—F—BHMBUT

accumulated depreciation 78 : i E 373,129 92,464 294 884 11,817 29,912 3,326 805,332
Additions E - 16,966 26,667 4,188 12,727 0,907 07,45
Transfer = 109,430 (109,430) - - - - -
Disposals & - - (305) - (25%) (60) (620)
Depreciation provided during AT E & &

the year (13,740) - (42,217) (4,682) (14,626) (2,689) (77,954)
Surplus on revaluation EREH 20,170 - - - - - 20,170
Exchange realignment R (1,83 - - ©) (188) (44) (2,009)

At 31 December 2014, net of —Z—ME+=F=+—HB#K

accumulated depreciation AT : Z5HE RLAE 493,158 - 279,029 11317 27,570 7,440 818,514
At 31 December 2014: R-E-ME+-A=1+-1:
Cost or valuation KAELE 493,158 - 047,343 82,163 213,723 10,591 1,446,978

Accumulated depreciation  RFHTE - (368,314) (70,846) (186,153) (3,151) (628,464)

Net carrying amount RRFE 493,158 - 279,029 11,317 27,570 7,40 818,514
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The net carrying amounts of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment held under finance leases and hire
purchase contracts included in the total amounts of
furniture, fixtures, equipment and others at 31 December
2015 were HK$489,000 (2014: HK$3,070,000).

The directors of the Company have determined that the
Group’s land and buildings consist of three classes of
asset, i.e., commercial, industrial and residential, based
on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.
All of the Group’s land and buildings were revalued on
31 December 2015 based on valuations performed by
Chung, Chan & Associates, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at HK$501,781,000. Each year, the
Group’s chief financial officer decides to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group’s chief financial officer has discussions with the
valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results once a year when the valuation is performed for
annual financial reporting.

Revaluation surplus of HK$26,434,000 resulting from the
revaluations on the Group’s land and buildings, net of
income tax effect of HK$5,961,000, has been credited to
other comprehensive income during the year.

1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=_FE—AF+=-A=+—H

13. 1% - BMEKRE ()

ATE—RF+-_A=+—8  KEARERE
HERMABAOMEYE  BEREERAE
ANERL - HE - REREMIIE - 8585 489,000
BT (ZE—4F : 3,070,000787T) °

REBESWENEE  FEERR  ARFESE
RE  AEBERN L RIEFRE-EEE B
¥ TEREE - AKECZBLHREFEL
RZE—RF+-A=1+—HREARBIYEEXS
ERHEMNETETETNHEEGRASG &
501,781,000/ 87T - BF » AEEPBLAERTER
E%f$il%¥m%$ﬁﬁ2%%%@% L3

BENBEMSNG B2 BUELESHER
EEOKE c AEBPKBERGEMBTRETF
PR RETHERSF T RAERR
RiLEER -

RARFEERN > AAEELMNEF2EEELEY
E H & 4 26,434,000 7% 7T (F1BR 5,961,000 7 7T BT
Bz E) Bt A 2wk -
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31 December 2015 W=_F—hAF+=-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Further particulars of the Group’s land and buildings are
included on pages 177 to 178.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s land and
buildings:

13. 1% - BMERRE ()
AEE L RBETFTE—SHBHNF 1772178

EO
DHESREE
TRETAEEI W EEFTOAFEFESFH

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2015 using

RZE-HAF+ZA=+-ANLAFEHEERR

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERTHIS EXUTEE BEAFITHEE
HRE BWAE BWAE
(58—) (5&=) (F8R=) asf
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET Fi87 FE7
Recurring fair value measurement for: FEM A FEFE
Commercial properties [SESES - - 127,071 127,071
Industrial properties ITEME - - 346,384 346,384
Residential properties FEME - - 28,326 28,326
- - 501,781 501,781
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2014 using
R-E-—MFE+-A=+—ANRTEFERA
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AERMS BRAEBE BANAIER
HOSR(E BAE BAE
(ZH—) (B5H-) (5H=) Baf
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T TET TR
Recurring fair value measurement for:  #FEMEAFETE ¢
Commercial properties HEME - - 120,222 120,222
Industrial properties TEME - - 346,276 346,276
Residential properties FEMmE - - 26,660 26,660
- - 493,158 493,158

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil).
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Notes to Financial Statements

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=_FE—AF+=-A=+—H

13. 1% - BMEKRE ()

Fair value hierarchy (continued) DEEERFE (&)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised DERAFTEERANER =R TEFENY
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: R :
Commercial Industrial Residential
properties properties properties
EENE TENE EEMHE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET T TET
Carrying amount at RZZ—ME-A—H#

1 January 2014 fREE 109,733 235,652 27,744
Additions NE - 109,430 -
Depreciation provided during the year FAMERE (3,398 (9,098) (1,244)
Net gain from fair value £ E At 2 T U o R B R A

adjustment recognised in other RERFEFHZER T

comprehensive income 14,996 10,295 879
Exchange realignment fE B (1,109) (3) (719)
Carrying amount at RZFE-—NFE+=ZA=1+—H

31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 kZZ—hAF—-A—HK

HRmEE 120,222 346,276 26,660
Additions NE - 269 -
Depreciation provided during the year FAMERE (3,564) (10,199 (1,188)
Net gain from fair value FEHE M2 H s P R

adjustment recognised in other REAFERAENF W

comprehensive income 12,349 10,038 4,047
Exchange realignment I 5 R (1,936) - (1,193)
Carrying amount at RZZ—AF+-_A=+—H

31 December 2015 HERE(E 127,071 340,384 28,326
The fair values of the land and buildings were T REFENATFE B EE - RIETISE

determined using the comparison approach based on
market comparables of similar properties and with
adjustments made on factors such as location, size, age,
condition and aspects of the properties.

D EL AT RN - K

RARERZFEHABMEE

Bk~ AR
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31 December 2015 W=_F—hAF+=-A=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the key inputs to the valuation
of land and buildings:

13. Y% - BEN&E (E)
DPESRHE (&)

T A5 LRI ER R E B A ER
BE -

Range (weighted average)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXRUEERAE

#E (EF9R)
2015 2014
—B-R% —TmF

Commercial properties
[BES/ES

Industrial properties
IXYR

Residential properties

EEDE

Adjusted price per square feet
RRBEGTHIRER
Adjusted price per square feet
CHBETITRER
Adjusted price per square feet

RRAREFHRER

HK$5,236 — HK$6,419
52368702 6,419 7T
HK$1,234 — HK$2,220
1,234 78702 2,220 87T
HK$7,884 — HK$8,852
7,884 BILE 8,852/ 7T

HK$4,852 — HK$6,205
4,852 T2 6,205 78T
HK$1,224 — HK$2,223
1,224 BT E 2,223 87T
HK$6,640 - HK$7,821
6,640 B TLE 7,821 78T

The Group has determined that the highest and best use
of the commercial and industrial properties at the
measurement date would be to convert those properties
for residential purposes. For strategic reasons, the
properties are not being used in this manner.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted price
per square feet would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the land and buildings.

AREBCLORTE NETER - AHRERTEY
ENRAREREREA/RZEVEEREEH
i o RNREIRH - ZFWERIL RMPER -

RRBEFHIRERKAE LA (TR @85 L
o RAE TR FERE LT (TR -

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BEY%
2015 2014
—E-EF —TmF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FER TET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 44,799 43,228
Net gain from fair value adjustments (note 5) NHEARY R (Hs) 883 4,020
Exchange realignment M 3, 2 (4,390) (2,449)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HBzKEE 41,292 44,799
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The directors of the Company have determined that the
Group’s investment properties are commercial
properties, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property. The Group’s investment properties
were revalued on 31 December 2015 based on valuations
performed by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at an aggregate value of
HK$41,292,000. Each year, the Group’s chief financial
officer decides to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s chief financial
officer has discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results once a year when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which

are included in note 34(a) to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on pages 178 to 179.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment

1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N-_ZE—AF+_-_HA=+—H

14, WEYE (&)

RESEVMENUEE - BREER - AARESD
RTE - ARENRENERBEDE - AREZ
REVFELR _T—AF+-_A=+—HBRE
BYHXSBERGEMGETMETNEESR
RAHE(E41,292,00078TC - BF - AEBMBHEE
REZTAEREEMENINGEENINEHE
fh - BURERNBREMISANGE - B2 BUMELE
BHRFFFFKE - AEBEMFAEREEMRE
FUBERETEF —RETHERIHREER
& M ERS

RELEMNETE =T 2RENEZE—HE
ZFFEN M IE MR L 34() ©

REBZEME L~ FHIEHNF 178E 179
E o

DFESRHE

TRETASERENENAHEFESR

properties:
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2015 using
R-BE-ZF+ZA=+-BNAPEFERA
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BRI EXTEE EAXATUHE
B B BAfE .
(58-) (5&=) (54=) asf
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value FEMATESE
measurement - - 41,292 41,292
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31 December 2015 W=_F—hAF+=-A=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REYZE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) PR EEHFHE (E)

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2014 using

R-E-OF+ - A=+—HORFEFERA

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RS BERAER BRTAEHR
KRB EAME EAE ‘
(FH—) (FH=) (FH=) &5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET TFHET
Recurring fair value BEMEATEE
measurement - - 44,799 44,799
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RAFERN  MEEER - RER - 2 EEER
measurements between Level 1 and 2 and no transfers EBASERER = A FEFE(ZF—NF:
into or out of Level 3 (2014: NiD. /).
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised DERAFESHANSEHA =N A TEFENH
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: Bk
HK§°000
TFHET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2014 RZE-—NEF—-A—BNRELE 43,228
Net gain from fair value adjustment recognised in FEEMBA R (EBR) (1B 2 55)
other income and gains/(losses), net in profit or loss FHIERRRE A FEARNF = 4,020
Exchange realignment b R (2,449)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2014 R_E-—NF+-_A=+—BEK=-_ZE—hF
and 1 January 2015 —A—HOEREE 44,799
Net gain from fair value adjustment recognised in FEEMBA R (BR) (1B 2 55)
other income and gains/(losses), net in profit or loss HIERHRE A FEARN Tl 883
Exchange realignment BE 3 2 (4,390)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2015 R-_E-—RAF+_-_A=+—BHNE@E 41,292
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

15.

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value of the investment properties were
determined using the comparison approach based on
market comparables of similar properties and with
adjustments made on factors such as location, size, age,
condition and aspects of the properties. The weighted
average range of the adjusted price per square feet is
HK$4,687 to HK$6,198 (2014: HK$3,483 to HK$4,724).

The Group has determined that the highest and best use
of the commercial properties at the measurement date
would be to convert those properties for residential
purposes. For strategic reason, the properties are not
being used in this manner.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted price
per square feet would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.

1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=_FE—AF+=-A=+—H

14, WEWE (&

DFESRHE (F)

BEMEN RN FERALESS - RIEBBUTS
AL MELRZSWENE - X/ Eik -
AR FAERZELFARMEBE - KABRTF
77 REAS B NIHE T & B A 4,687 BILE 6,198
BT (B —U4E 3483 BILE 4,724/87T) ©

AEBEEORTE NAAER  BREBEDENR
AREREREASZENEER/EETRE - &
REESIE - ZEWERALARMUER o

EREGTHREBAEL (TR 2880
BEWMENNTEKRE L (TF) -

GOODWILL 15. B
2015 2014
A i —FmF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
At 1 January: n—H—H:

Cost and net carrying amount BANE K AR DR E 857 857
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated impairment R—A—HZKAE  MREHRE 857 857
Goodwill written off during the year FAREME (857) -
Net carrying amount REFE - 857
At 31 December: R+=ZA=+—8:

Cost and net carrying amount KAEKREEFE - 857
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31 December 2015 W=_F—hAF+=-A=+—H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. HMEFEE

With
With finite indefinite
useful lives useful life Total
AR wR )
AEAEH A FA 6 2 &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET T T
31 December 2015 —E-RF¥+=ZB=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2015, net of NZE—hF—AF—HZ
accumulated amortisation BAE « 0B Rt 5H 8,230 100 8,336
Additions NE 1,500 - 1,500
Amortisation provided during the year & AR (1,126) - (1,126)
Impairment during the year ERRE (8,590) - (8,590)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—AF+=-A=+—H 20 100 120
At 31 December 2015: RZZE-—RE+-A=1+—H:
Cost [BEN 23,904 100 24,004
Accumulated amortization and REMEEMRE
impairment (23,884) - (23,884)
Net carrying amount EEFE 20 100 120
With
With finite indefinite
useful lives useful life Total
AR R )
AR EH A fE A &5t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
31 December 2014 “E-WE+=A=+-H
At 1 January 2014 RZE—MF—HF—8:
Cost [BEN 22,404 100 22,504
Accumulated amortisation ERE T (13,043) - (13,043)
Net carrying amount BREFE 9,361 100 9,461
Cost at 1 January 2014, net of RZE-—WE-HA—-HZ
accumulated amortisation BARME - 0k E Y 9,361 100 9,461
Amortisation provided during the year G RBEEEH (1,125) - (1,1235)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=+—H 8,236 100 8,336
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015: R=Z—NF+=-F=+—H
E=F-HF—A—R:
Cost X AR 22,404 100 22,504
Accumulated amortisation BT (14,168) - (14,168)
Net carrying amount REFE 8,236 100 8,336
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, intangible assets with finite
useful lives represented purchased data library,
copyrights, trademarks and domain names. Intangible
asset with an indefinite useful life represents a motor
vehicle registration mark.

Impairment test on intangible assets
For the purpose of impairment testing, intangible assets

with useful lives have been allocated to two cash-
generating units (*CGU”), being the magazines unit and

1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=_FE—AF+=-A=+—H

16. AMBEREE (&

R —E-RFE+_A=1+—HB BRAEHAFH
ZEVEAERMBAZERNE - RiE - BEREEE
%o BRAIGAFHZETLEERAETLTH
i -

BLEERE
SUREREAME - AARERFHNETLEED

FeemEReEL B ([ReEEEM]) - B
B SRR - PR TRRFEMZEE

the recruitment unit. The carrying amounts allocated to BT :
these units are as follows:
Magazines Recruitment Total
% ISR RE &5t
HK§ ’009 HK§ ’009 HK$ ’009
TET TET TET
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-R2F+=-A=+-—H
Purchased data library, copyrights and ~ FTEEAZ ERE - Wi -« B2
trademark - - -
Domain names o _ 20 20
- 20 20
At 31 December 2014 N-Z-NE+=-A=+—H
Purchased data library, copyrights and ~ FTEE A Z ERHE « Mg « B2
trademark 8,206 - 8,206
Domain names o - 30 30
8,206 30 8,236
Magazines cash-generating unit MrE o ELEN

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the financial
performance of the magazines CGU was below
expectation of the Group, which was an impairment
indicator of the related intangible assets. Therefore, the
directors of the Company conducted an impairment
assessment of the related intangible assets.

The recoverable amount of the magazines CGU as at 31
December 2015 was determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a 5-year period approved by
senior management, using a negative growth rate of 8%
and the discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 3%.

BE_Z-RAF+-_A=+—BILFE H#FH
SEEBM 2 MBRBENANEEAEL - 15
BRELEERERE - Bt - ARAEEYH
HEEEEEITREDT -

R-E-RAF+-_A=1+—H HMFHLELE
iz BB ZEREELNBRESGRE
BEEMEz AFHMBAE 2R REFRA G
B BEhMERzBRERG8%  MATERAZE
ST 2 BRI R 3% ©
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31 December 2015 T =

16.

17.

—AFE+=ZA=+—H

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test on intangible assets (continued)
Magazines cash-generating unit (continued)

The following key assumptions were used in the value-
in-use calculation on which management has based its
cash flow projection to undertake impairment testing:

Negative growth rate — the rate is determined on the
basis of the average actual growth achieved in the prior
five years for the magazines CGU.

Discount rate — the rate used is before tax and reflects
the forecasted inflation indices relating to the magazines
CGU budget years.

In light of the unfavourable market circumstances and
the sustained operating losses recorded during the year
ended 31 December 2015 due to the depression in the
magazines industry, the recoverable amount of the
magazines CGU was negative. This resulted in an
impairment of intangible assets of approximately
HK$8,590,000 in the magazines CGU, which was
recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

16. HMEFEE (&)

BLEERE (H)
R EL B (B)

T EERFIREAEESE
ESmTEREITRE R

EHEERBEER

BERER EEREHEENSEEBMAFN
:Ff‘j E\lg%i E‘FH 7-'-0

BT — TR L T R AT 3 R SR
SEEBUEETE BN AR IR -

ERTHMIR NS TR EXEREE—FT—F
FH-A=t-RALFERERSKEER M
wREELABMUZAINOESRESRE  AMEH
MnReEEBMELEERMERNSS590,0008
T DRBE_Z-RAFT A=+ —HLFE
ZBERER -

17. REELXEZIRE

2015 2014

—Z-If —F-OmF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET TET

Share of net assets EIEEEFE 70,760 103,061
Due from joint ventures eI A E R - 3,931
Less: Impairment of amounts due from joint ventures Ji : fEY /\Mﬁ:\%nﬂﬁi\}ﬁﬁ - (3,855)
70,760 103,137

The amounts due from joint ventures were unsecured,
interest-free and had no fixed terms of repayment.
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1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N-_ZE—AF+_-_HA=+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. RABOEIBE (&)

The movements in the provision for impairment of

amounts due from joint ventures are as follows:

el A e P RBERENEEINT

2015 2014

—E-Rf —T-MF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET TET

At 1 January n—HA—AH 3,855 3,100
Impairment losses made BIEHRIERE - 755
Written off ki (3,855) -
At 31 December R+=-—RA=+—H - 3,855

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures, all of

ARRRAERBZAREETERERR 2 FEW

which are indirectly held by the Company, are as K
follows:
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued share of ownership
registration and capital/ interest attributable
Name business Registered capital to the Group Principal activities
AL, BRITRE FEERES
% BRREEE HMER FERESZEIL TEEXK
2015 2014
—E-RF _—T-MOF
I RBERDEHERE People’s RMB15,400,000 70 70 Provision of
BRAE#* Republic of China registered capital on-line and off-line
mEARKEME AR 15,400,0007C corporate and
AER vocational training
and related services
ROUE EMIES
EREBZE
KBRS
Sing Tao Daily Limited Canada CA$10,000 25 25 Newspaper
YN Class A publishing
common shares WMEET
10,000 AI7T
BRAEBR

Sing Tao Newspapers Canada CA$2,021,871 50 50 Newspaper
(Canada 1988) Limited mneEx Series 1 publishing
common shares WMEET

CA$15,780,809
Series 2
common shares
2,021,871 07T
£ 1L AR
15,780,809 07T
LAk
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. RABDESIRE ()
#  Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or #  WIEREBELKSHMERMHMEERE
another member firm of the Ernst & Young global KEETAT SIS B 2%
network
*  The joint venture agreement relating to the * BREKS I S EEEHERBRERE AT

establishment of It RECEE XHE R AR QA
stipulates that all resolutions of its board of
directors must be approved by two-thirds of its
members. As the Group is only entitled to appoint

three members out of five members of the board of B o

directors, the joint venture has been accounted for

using equity method.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not

individually material:

HEIEN

REMRFBEETENEHRERL AR
=N —ERERBNIE - BERAKEE
BENZAECERTRESTENEPERER
FZERE RAELECDEBEDEA

TREFEBRENN S TEANEELENA

2015 2014
—E-RfF —T—0%
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx TET
Share of the joint ventures’ profit and total DEEECERFREGEN L EH
comprehensive income for the year Wi 11,252 21,434
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s AEERGLELEZRENAG
investments in the joint ventures RE®E 70,760 103,137
18. INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—RBE NI 2R E
2015 2014
—E-1fF —T—0%
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
Share of net assets EIEEEFE - 129
Loan to an associate m—fEEE DR ENE R 5,600 5,600
Less: Impairment of loan to an associate B RS ARRENERORE (1,057) -
4,543 5,729
Classified as current assets DERRBEE (4,543) -
Classified as non-current assets DRRFERBEE - 5,729
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18. INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. R—RIE NTZIRE (&)

The loan to an associate included in the Group’s current AZE—RAF+_A=+—08  m—EBEQF
assets amounting to HK$4,543,000 as at 31 December IRESEE A 4,543,000 B TR ERIFT AR EE 2
2015 is unsecured, bears interest at 1% per annum, and MBEE  EABEMEIZ1%NFERERETS -
repayable on 31 October 2016, with an on demand WERZZE—R"F+A=+—HEE TAEX
repayment clause at the discretion of the Group. As at EENIBHEREENER - R_T—NF+ =
31 December 2014, since the loan was not expected to A=+—8 BReExEffaant+t_EARE
be repaid within 12 months, the loan was included in B BRI A ERBEE -

non-current assets.

The movements in the provision for impairment of B AL EFTIBRERENESHNT
amounts due from joint ventures are as follows:

2015 2014
“E-Hf —T-MEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FER TET
At 1 January K—HA—H - -
Impairment losses made BEELREEE 1,057 -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 1,057 -
Particulars of the associate, which is indirectly held by RAFEERFE 2 —HBERTZFBNOT
the Company, are as follows:
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation ordinary ownership interest Principal
Name and business share capital attributable to the Group activity
ERALR KRB ‘
8 R BRTEBERRE FEREZE I TEXK
2015 2014
e —T—mF
Bastille Post Hong Kong HK$29,290,000 30 30 Internet and
Company Limited BB (2014: HK$14,290,000) mobile media
BLHRER AT 29,290,000 /& 7T business
14,290,000 7T) MENRE X
The following table sets out the financial information of TRINEAREBTERNBEARNMBEELR
the Group’s associate which is not material:
2015 2014
—E-1f —T—0%
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Share of the associate’s loss and total DMEHE RN AFEEER
comprehensive loss for the year HEEARE (4,629) (3,588)
Carrying amount of the Group’s REFRBE AR ZIRER
investments in the associate RHEE 4,543 5,729
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

20.

21.

19. AHHERE

2015 2014
—E-RfF —T—F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T

Investment securities: REES
Listed equity securities, at fair value FHRAES - ZRATFE 47 47
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FLETRAES - ZKAE - -
Unlisted debt securities, at fair value FLEMEBES  BLTE 8,200 8,234
8,247 8,281

During the year, the gross fair value loss in respect of
the Group’s available-for-sale investments recognised in
other comprehensive income amounted to HK$34,000

(2014: gain of HK$250,000).

The above investments consist of investments in equity
securities which were designated as available-for-sale

financial assets and have no fixed maturity date or

coupon rate.

FHHRERER

RAFERN  AEEBEHEME2EKRSTERZT
HEERE 2 A FEWZELETE A 34,0008 (=
T—PO4F : Y3 250,000787T) °

PR ERRERER/AIRKEMHEEBEREE
ZIRAFEFIRE -

INVENTORIES 20. &
2015 2014
—E-HF —TNEF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FET Fé&T
Raw materials R # 46,483 74,478
Finished goods S m 3,180 3,408
49,663 77,886
TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. FEUREESL
2015 2014
“E-HE —E—mF
HKS$’000 HK$°000
FBT Fé&r
Trade receivables JRE s BR 3R 465,316 504,272
Impairment BB (11,145) (11,402)
454,171 492,870
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally for a period of one month, extending up to
three months for major customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the payment due date, is

1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=_FE—AF+=-A=+—H

21. BUERFR (&)

BRTHEP —RARANNIN  AEERETS
ZEGTERBRRLET  EEH-—RE—
BA  TEXPALERE=EA - EFFHR

REREER - AERBEHE KB ERBERT R
BRARIER] - WRAFEEEEHFAINEEREREE
R - 2REREELTRIBYR N 2B - E
BE Lt RIE R AEE 2 RUARRTIEBARES T
tEFPER  MIEBEERRETZER - A&
[ 30 42 st L W AR RS B (T s L M5
R - BEERARE -

RER - BUSRFIRIEFIREI B Z iRk D
HrEsan e

as follows:
2015 2014
“E-Hf —T-MEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TFET
Current to 30 days BIHAZE 30 & 295,987 337,156
31 to 60 days 31 260K 61,793 67,045
61 to 90 days 61E 90K 45,138 41,701
91 to 120 days 91 £ 120K 19,060 18,436
Over 120 days i 120K 43,338 39,934
465,316 504,272
The movements in the provision for impairment of trade FEYWRR R BERENE ST -
receivables are as follows:
2015 2014
—E-f%F ZT-NE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1 January K—HA—H 11,402 11,076
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) BRRRERE (HF7) 2,348 2,255
Amounts written off as uncollectible TREM eI Mt & 58 (2,535) (1,846)
Exchange realignment B X TR (70) (83)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 11,145 11,402
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The individually impaired trade receivables with an
aggregate carrying amount before provision of
HK$11,145,000 (2014: HK$11,402,000) relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties or were in
default of payments and the receivables are not
expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually or collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:

21.

FEUR R (4

18 B 380 (B #9 FE U BF 7% 42 BF T B (R 40 Bk B 15
11,145,0008 T ( — T — Ei 11,402,000 78 7T )
A B RAMBRERES A EFTENEF > EH
ZERW BT E o

155 S 8 32 5 3 4 R (L A0 B KPR SR 0 R B 47
T

2015 2014

—E-T1F —E-F

HKS$’000 HK$°000

FBT T

Current to 30 days BIHAZE 30 & 295,987 336,951
31 to 60 days 312 60K 61,793 66,889
61 to 90 days 612 90K 44,752 40,965
91 to 120 days 91E 120K 18,332 16,888
Over 120 days BB 120K 33,307 31,177
454,171 492,870

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

23.
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22. FEMNFIR - BRERHERUIA

RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
—E-EF T ¥
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TFET
Prepayments ERNRE 17,893 17,311
Deposits and other receivables e M E Y FIE 80,025 78,075
97,918 95,386
Deposits classified as non-current assets ReBERBDEEZIRSE (50,350) (55,237)
47,568 40,149

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

23. BAFETAEDRRZUBEE

2015 2014

—E-0fF ZE-E

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Listed equity securities, at market value ERBRAES  EmE 15,220 5,941
Unlisted debt securities, at fair value FEMERES BATE 37,399 -
52,619 5,941

The above investments at 31 December 2014 and 2015
were classified as held for trading and were, upon initial
recognition, designated by the Group as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.

R-E—NER-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—8  t
MEEDBAERIEEBERS  RNYRERE - &K
EEEEETARATELABREZUBE
ED
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24.

25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24. RERREEHEER

2015 2014

—E-FHf —T—MEF

HK$’000 HK$°000

FBT FET

Cash and bank balances Be RIRTE % 450,107 375,661
Non-pledged time deposits EEATHER 394,057 450,434
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSHEER 844,164 820,095

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$32,051,000 (2014: HK$67,266,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
An aged analysis of trade and bills payables as at the

end of the reporting period, based on the payment due
date, is as follows:

RIBEER - REBUARE ([ AR ]) AN
e MRITEER 32,051,000 T (ZFE—
F 1 67,266,000/87C) - ARBIANA]ERLBRA
HapEE - Rl BB B R 2 INEE IR 5]
LaEiE - EERNETERT - AEBEAERS
%@%5%3@?91\E%%Zﬁiﬁﬂ%/\ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ
thEH o

FRIBITZR ST ARITERN R 2% 85
B o RHEMFE IR ARE 2 RREME © €
F—HE=ZEATSE  UkRE&E ZEATHER
FRREF B o RITHEBRREFARDEFRRNEER
WFROERTT - AW TR B -

25. EERRR

R|BERR - BNERALRBEREFRSHE 2
BRECDITESIEAT

R

2015 2014

—E-FRE —E—mEF

HK$’000 HK§°000

FET THET

Current to 30 days BIERZE 30 K 56,184 71,616
31 to 60 days 31 E 60K 6,377 12,895
61 to 90 days 61 E90K 5,015 5,867
91 to 120 days 91E 120K 449 1,527
Over 120 days iR 120K 752 7306
68,777 92,641

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 60-day terms.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED  Annual Report 2015



Notes to Financial Statements

26.

27.

OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND PROVISION

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average payment term of three months.

Provision included in non-current liabilities represented
the estimated restoration costs upon the expiration of
the lease term of the Group’s office premises. The
Group estimates the costs of dismantling and removing
the property, plant and equipment and restoring the site
on which they are located. The amount of the provision
for restoration cost is estimated based on quotation from
the contractors. The estimation basis is reviewed on an
ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

FINANCE LEASE AND HIRE PURCHASE
CONTRACT PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its furniture, fixtures and
equipment for its media business. These leases are
classified as finance leases and have remaining lease
terms ranging from one to five years.

At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease
payments under finance leases and their present values
were as follows:

26

27.

1 15 ¥R R B ot
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. HAMEARE - BRI EE

HiENFKER T ELAS = A FHHR
/H\H o

RIFERBDEEAZ BB R/AEE 2 ZFEYE
MRS 2 EEHE R AR - AEEAEE
TR 55 B s 2 BT PRI 2 1B IR A © 18R
Az BB B RER B 2 MEEL K
AEEEEHREMAGERE  YRNEZERELE
e

BMERNORABSORNRE

AEEARAMBES 2 ETFHRA BBRS
- RSRONHEARARL - HT2LBHN
FERFTE -

RIZE-—RF+-A=+—0 " REMEENZ
AREELEE FHERENT

Minimum Minimum  Present value Present value of
lease lease of minimum  minimum lease
payments payments lease payments payments
RERE iviikn
BEHRS HERE ZHE ZBE
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
FET FAT FET FAT
Amounts repayable: fEEEFE
Within one year —ER 353 1,023 324 971
In the second year £EF 325 988 315 960
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-EZERF(BEER
WE) 2 1,375 2 1,365
Total minimum finance lease payments RIEFEMA BT 680 3,386 641 3,296
Future finance charges ARBEER 39) (90)
Total net finance lease payables BMERAENTIERFE 641 3,296
Portion classified as current liabilities SRS AREEE 227 (324) 97D
Non-current portion EREID 317 2,325
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27. FINANCE LEASE AND HIRE PURCHASE 27. MEAARBEBSYOENSRE (&
CONTRACT PAYABLES (continued)
Other information: Hi&EH -
2015 2014
—E-EF —ZT-mF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity rate (%) Maturity
BERAE (%) B BHEAIE (%) Bl
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current ENER 0-1 2016 324 0-1 2015 971
Non-current FEENER 0-1 2018 317 0-1 2019 2,325
641 3,296
28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IEERIA
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets FRELEHIRBEREEZZEENT
during the year are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEAE
Fair value
adjustments
Depreciation  arising from
allowance in acquisition of
excess of an additional Revaluation Recognition
related  interest in a of of tax Withholding
depreciation joint venture  properties losses taxes Total
‘ hmAE
BEAE CEEMES _
T T  pERA )
nERHE OVESER  EfUF ZER  BNRE @t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000  HK$'000
TET TEL TEL TET TELT  TAT
At 1 January 2014 RZZE-mE-A—H 55,710 4,804 44,441 (49,724) - 55,291
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the statement FRRNBFENIGR/ (Gt A)
of profit or loss during the year (note 10) ZIEIERVE (M3 10) (399) - (181) 2,279 - 1,699
Deferred tax charged to asset revaluation FRREEEMHBETR
reserve during the year ZEEFRE - - 4869 - - 4,869
Exchange realignment 0 5 3% ©) - - - - )
At 31 December 2014 and WZE-NF+-F=1—H
1 January 2015 Lk=Z-H5-F-H 55,302 4,804 49,129 (47,445) - 61850
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the statement FRRNBFEAINGR/ (Gt A)
of profit or loss during the year (note 10) ZIERERE (M3 10) (2,401) - (58) 3,861 24,539 25,941
Deferred tax charged to asset revaluation FRRERFEERNR
reserve during the year LIEERIE - - 5,901 - - 5,961
Exchange realignment 0 53 3% ©) - - - - )
At 31 December 2015 RZB-RF+ZA=+-H 52,892 4,864 55,032 (43,584) 24,539 93,743
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 28. IEEFIE (42
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
Depreciation
in excess of
related Recognition of
depreciation tax
allowance Provisions losses Total
BB BERSE )
ZESBE &% TR et
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—MFE—[F—H - 9,147 5,742 14,889
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ FRREZFERAF A
the statement of profit or loss (HIBR) 2 BIEFIE
during the year (note 10) (MzE10) 1,132 1,344 (2,197 279
Exchange realignment BE 5 SR - (155) - (155)
At 31 December 2014 and Eé:%—@i
1 January 2015 TZRA=T—HkK
—E-h¥—H—H 1,132 10,336 3,545 15,013
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to EWEQEE?EWEJF)\/
the statement of profit or loss (THE?I}) 2 EERIE
during the year (note 10) (MizE10) 335 2,714 (901) 2,148
Exchange realignment 0 3 - (185) - (185)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-IfF
+=B=+-H 1,467 12,865 2,644 16,976
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax RBERAR REEBFREBEZHEEEL
losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately 867,660,000 8 7T ( ZF — U4 : %7 854,046,000 7
HK$867,660,000 (2014: approximately HK$854,046,000) JC) ATER AR EEE AL EBEZ AR Z K
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future REEFHHUR T o AREEIRA IR B A 83
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses T E 18 4)23567,00008 L ( ZZF — W F: 4
arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland 22,885,000787C)  EER—2RFRNE|HE - aJ A
China of approximately HK$23,567,000 (2014: RESEARRERTFE - AR LEFBRIIKES
approximately HK$22,885,000) that will expire in one to THEEEEE —BKEZAR  MEEERA
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. HA KA BEE 4 AR 88 PR S S 1B A JERR
Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of FRAE - B 48 AR % 8 18 49 611,060,000 78 7T
approximately HK$611,060,000 (2014: approximately ZE—POF 1 49567,900,000 7870 HERIRIETE
HK$567,900,000) have not been recognised as they have BEE o

arisen in certain subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and in the opinion of the directors, it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
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28.

29.

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 28. ELEFIIE (4F
Deferred tax assets (continued) EERIBEE (&)
Pursuant to the Canada Income Tax Act, a 25% BIBNERFIERE - RIIERKZINEIEE
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to EEMINEIRE E TR Z IR BRI 25% B -
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises BB o WMMEREINEIKREEZ AVEEERD
established in Canada. A lower withholding tax rate may R TSEY > AledE R EMTEFIRER - @A
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Canada and RAEEZRER15%H25% AL - AEEE
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, SEFEABMNEZENINEANKS 2B A
the applicable rate is 15% or 25%. The Group is AIFTE R 2 AR BTEMFIE o
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributable by those subsidiaries established in Canada
in respect of earnings generated.
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the NN EIE S SR N SN NSRS A DE
payment of dividends by the Company to its £,
shareholders.
SHARE CAPITAL 29. R
Shares gy
2015 2014
—E-fHf —T—F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
Authorised: SETERAR -
2,354,256,546 ordinary shares 2,354,256,546 I I 3@ A%
of HK$0.2 each FRMEE.2HEIT 470,851 470,851
1,291,486,908 5% redeemable 1,291,486,908 IR AR EE 0.1 87T
cumulative convertible preference 2 5% 218 0] fE 8] ] SR8 S iR
shares of HK$0.1 each 129,149 129,149
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREARRKAK
805,356,337 (2014: 839,043,837) 865,356,337 A%
ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each —Z U : 839,043,837 %)
LTEREREE 2T 173,072 167,809
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
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29. BRA (48)

Shares (continued) B4 (&)
A summary of movements in the Company’s share KRR AR 2 S ELOT -
capital is as follows:
Number of
ordinary Issued Share
shares in ordinary premium
issue share capital account Total
2R 2R1T
EBEREA EEREE  ROBEER Ht
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—-NE—H—H 837,730,497 167,546 710 168,256
Exercise of share options 171 B AR 1,313,340 263 1,248 1,511
At 31 December 2014 and RZZE—NF+-A=+—HxK
1 January 2015 —E-h¥—H—H 839,043,837 167,809 1,958 169,767
Exercise of share options TR R 26,312,500 5,263 22,797 28,060
At 31 December 2015 R=Z-2F+=A=+-H 865,356,337 173,072 24,755 197,827

During the year, the subscription rights attaching to
26,312,500 (2014: 1,313,340) share options were
exercised at the subscription prices of HK$0.73 and
HK$0.92 per share (note 30), resulting in the issue of
26,312,500 (2014: 1,313,340) shares of HK$0.2 each for a
total cash consideration, before expenses, of
HK$20,339,000 (2014: HK$1,017,000). An amount of
HK$7,721,000 (2014: HK$494,000) was transferred from
the share option reserve to the share premium account
upon the exercise of the share options.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the

share options granted under the schemes are included in
note 30 to the financial statements.

RAFEA - M T REE 2 BEARHE 26,312,500 %
(ZZ—%F : 1,313,340 %) D HITE - 1TEEER
FH0.738 0 % 0.9278 7T (KisE30) » B{FE 31T
26,312,500 % ( ZZF —PO4F : 1,313,340 I8 ) AR
BAR2BITLZRG - RSN EEMBRFASA
420,339,000 7 7T ( = & — PO 4 : 1,017,000 7
TL) o TR R S REARER - £%7,721,00078 7T

ZE—PUG 1 494,000 78 7T ) £ B8 PG RE Rk 4

ERMEER

B

BRAARRBERET 8 MRE SR L EREL
BRI BRI 30 ©
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May 2002
(the “2002 Scheme”)

The 2002 Scheme was adopted by the Company on
28 May 2002 and had a term of 10 years
commencing from 28 May 2002, unless otherwise

terminated in accordance with the terms of the 2002

Scheme.

Summary of the 2002 Scheme is set out below:

(a)

®)

Purpose

The 2002 Scheme seeks to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by the
participants to the Group, to motivate the
participants to optimise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group, and to
maintain or attract business relationship with
the participants whose contributions are or
may be beneficial to the growth of the Group.

Participants

The board of directors may at its absolute
discretion invite anyone from the following
classes of participants to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company:

(i) any part-time or full-time employee or
officer of any member of the Group or of
any associate;

(i) any director (executive or non-executive)
of any member of the Group or of any
associate; or

(iii) any supplier, agent, customer, business
associate, distributor, professional or other
adviser of, or consultant or contractor to,
any member of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May 2002
(the “2002 Scheme”) (continued)

(c)

(d)

Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2002 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the 2002
Scheme (excluding options which have lapsed)
(the “General Mandate”).

The Company may, at any time, refresh the
General Mandate by obtaining the approval of
shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting. The Company may also seek separate
approval by its shareholders in a general
meeting for granting options beyond the
General Mandate or the refreshed limit
provided that the options in excess of the limit
are granted to participants specifically
identified before such approval is sought.

The overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless separately approved by shareholders in
a general meeting in the manner as prescribed
in the Listing Rules, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of share
options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares then in issue.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May 2002
(the “2002 Scheme”) (continued)

(e) Period within which the shares must be taken
up

The period during which a share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the 2002 Scheme shall be the period set out in
the relevant offer letter provided that such
period expires no later than the tenth
anniversary of the date on which it is granted.

(f) Basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price shall be the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the relevant share options;

(i) the average of the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the relevant share
options; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

(g) Remaining life

The 2002 Scheme expired on 27 May 2012.
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Notes to Financial Statements

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May 2002

(the “2002 Scheme”) (continued)

A resolution was passed by the shareholders of the
Company in the annual general meeting held on 27
May 2005 to refresh the General Mandate limit to
10% of the number of the shares of the Company in
issue as at 27 May 2005. Such refreshment of the
General Mandate limit will enable the Company to
grant options carrying the rights to subscribe for up
to a total of 91,717,753 shares (adjusted due to
consolidation of the Company’s shares on 18 May
2006) of the Company under the 2002 Scheme and
other scheme(s) of the Company, if any.

On 23 May 2012, the 2002 Scheme was terminated
and a new share option scheme was adopted. Upon
the termination of the 2002 Scheme, no further
share options could be granted thereunder.
However, all outstanding share options previously
granted under the 2002 Scheme remain valid and
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

At 1 January 2015, there were 29,629,200 share
options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme. During
the year, no share option was granted under the
2002 Scheme. A total of 26,312,500 outstanding
share options previously granted under the 2002
Scheme at the exercise prices ranging from HK$0.73
to HK$0.92 per share were exercised, resulting in
the issue of 26,312,500 new ordinary shares for a
total consideration, before expenses, of
HK$20,339,000, which was received by the
Company. A total of 633,340 outstanding share
options previously granted under the 2002 Scheme
at the exercise price of HK$1.16 per share lapsed.

As at 31 December 2015, there were 2,683,360 share
options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme, with
an exercise period from 18 January 2007 to 11 April
2020 and exercise prices ranging from HK$0.82 to
HK$1.16 per share.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May 2012
(the “2012 Scheme”)

The 2012 Scheme was adopted by the Company on
23 May 2012 and has a term of 10 years
commencing from 23 May 2012, unless otherwise

terminated in accordance with the terms of the 2012
Scheme.

Summary of the 2012 Scheme is set out below:

(a)

®)

Purpose

The 2012 Scheme seeks to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by the
participants to the Group, to motivate the
participants to optimise their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group, and to
maintain or attract business relationship with
the participants whose contributions are or
may be beneficial to the growth of the Group.

Participants

The board of directors may at its absolute
discretion invite anyone from the following
classes of participants to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company:

() any part-time or full-time employee or
officer of any member of the Group or of
any associate;

(i) any director (executive or non-executive)
of any member of the Group or of any
associate; or

(iii) any supplier, agent, customer, business
associate, distributor, professional or other
adviser of, or consultant or contractor to,
any member of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May 2012
(the “2012 Scheme”) (continued)

(c)

(d)

Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2012 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the 2012
Scheme (excluding options lapsed) (the
“Mandate Limit”).

The Company may, at any time, refresh the
Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval of
shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting. The Company may also seek separate
approval by its shareholders in a general
meeting for granting options beyond the
Mandate Limit or the refreshed limit provided
that the options in excess of the limit are
granted to participants specifically identified
before such approval is sought.

The overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless separately approved by shareholders in
a general meeting in the manner as prescribed
in the Listing Rules, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of share
options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares then in issue.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) . BT E (&)

(2) Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May 2012

(the “2012 Scheme”) (continued)

(e) Period within which the shares must be taken
up

The period during which a share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the 2012 Scheme shall be the period set out in
the relevant offer letter provided that such
period expires no later than the tenth
anniversary of the date on which it is granted.

(f) Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price must be at least the higher
of:

(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the relevant share options; and

(i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the relevant share
options.

(g) Remaining life

The 2012 Scheme will expire on 22 May 2022.

At 1 January 2015, there was no share option
outstanding under the 2012 Scheme. During the
year, under the 2012 Scheme, a total of 38,130,000
share options were granted to the employees of the
Group at the exercise price of HK$1.16 per share,
and a total of 1,100,000 outstanding share options
previously granted at the exercise price of HK$1.16
per share lapsed.

As at 31 December 2015, there were 37,030,000
share options outstanding under the 2012 Scheme,
with the exercise period from 4 May 2016 to 3 May
2025 and the exercise price of HK$1.16 per share.
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Notes to Financial Statements

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The fair value of equity settled share options granted
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant,
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

2015
Dividend yield (%) 5.94
Expected volatility (%) 51.51
Historical volatility (%) 51.51
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.42
Expected life of options (year) 3
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 1.02

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had 2,683,360
(2014: 29,629,200) and 37,030,000 (2014: Nil) share
options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme and the
2012 Scheme, respectively, with an exercise period from
18 January 2007 to 3 May 2025 and exercise prices
ranging from HK$0.82 to HK$1.16 per share. The
exercise in full of the remaining share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 39,713,360 (2014: 29,629,200)
additional shares of HK$0.2 each, which represented
approximately 4.59% of the existing issued ordinary
share capital of the Company at the end of the reporting
period.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30. BRRRETE (&)
During the year, movements of share options granted to FAN - SESZREEREERBERARBRERT
the directors and eligible employees under the share EER T2 BlREEEHINT

option schemes of the Company are as follows:

Number of share options

Exercise Fair
Date of Transfer price of value
grant of At Granted Exercised Lapsed during the At share per
Name or category share 1 January during during during year 31 December  Exercise period options share
of participant options 2015  theyear  the year the year  (Note2) 2015  of share options (Note 1)  option
R R BRE Bk
BRE —2-1F ERER C_2-1F ke BRE
SRELREN RHA® -A-R HpRE  FR0E FRXN (WE2) tZA=1-A BREGES (Wi1) BRYE
HKS$ HKS$
BT Er
Directors
£
Under the 2002 Scheme:
BE-EE-FitE:
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis 23-05-05 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - - 23-05-06 to 22-05-15 0.776 -
e
Mr. Lo Wing Hung 04-05-05 18,000,000 - (18,000,000) - - - 04-05-00 to 03-05-15 0.770 -
BXERE
Mr. Siu Sai Wo 03-05-05 4,372,500 - (4,372,500) - - - 03-05-06 to 02-05-15 0.770 -
LSkt
23,372,500 - (23,372,500 - - -
Under the 2012 Scheme:
BE-E-—FitE:
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles 04-05-15 - 830,000 - - - 830,000 04-05-16 to 03-05-25 1.160 0.44
AR -
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak 04-05-15 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 04-05-16 to 03-05-25 1.160 0.44
(Note 3)
fIEBEE
(Wit 3)
Mr. Jia Hongping 04-05-15 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 04-05-16 to 03-05-25 1.160 0.44
BATRE
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis 04-05-15 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 04-05-16 to 03-05-25 1.160 0.44
st
Mr. Siu Sai Wo 04-05-15 - 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 04-05-16 to 03-05-25 1.160 0.44
BALE
Associate of Director(s)
ESHHEA
Under the 2012 Scheme:
BA=F-—F3E
Mr. Sy Kin Lun 04-05-15 - 500,000 = - (500,000) - 04-05-16 to 03-05-25 1.160 0.38
REREE
- 11,330,000 - - (500,000) 10,830,000
E)Fil 23,372,500 11,330,000 (23,372,500) - (500,000) 10,830,000
(=)
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
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30. fERERTE ()

Number of share options

Exercise Fair
Date of Transfer price of value
grant of At Granted Exercised Lapsed during At share per

Name or category share 1 January during during during  the year 31 December  Exercise period options share

of participant options 2015  the year  the year the year  (Nole 2) 2015  of share options (Note 1)  option

3 % BEE  SE

BEE Z8-EF i N T 1 . GRE  BEE

SREEZIRG RHA® -A-A AR FR0E RN (WE2) TZA=t-H BRETES (WE1) NAVE

HK$ HK$§

B BT

Other employees 28-10-05 1,940,000 - (1,940,000) - - - 28-10-06 to 27-10-15 0.730 -
(in aggregate)

RS (4:t) 19-01-06 750,000 - - - - 750,000 18-01-07 to 18-01-16 0820 -

Under the 2002 Scheme 27-06-06 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - - 27-06-07 to 26-00-16 0.920 -

BE-TT-GFitd 120410 2,566,700 - - (633340 - 1933360 12-04-11 10 11-04-20 1160 -

0,256,700 - (2,940,000)  (633,340) - 2,683,300

Under the 2012 Scheme 04-05-15 - 26,800,000 - (1,100,000) 500,000 26,200,000 04-05-16 to 03-05-25 1.160 0.38

BE-T-—FitE

Total 0,256,700 26,800,000  (2,940,000) (1,733,340) 500,000 28,883,300

At

Grand Total 29,629,200 38,130,000 (26,312,500) (1,733,340) - 39,713,360

gy (Note 4)  (Note 5)

(Wit4)  (Wis)

Notes: et

1.  The exercise price of the share options is subject to 1. BEREZITEEEREBEHI - BT A
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or N ARLEIE Y AU MIEL FE -
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

2. Mr. Sy Kin Lun is the son of Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong 2. EEBAEAAANTEEHERE LT IR
who was a director of the Company, and therefore an FoREMEAEEEE LT BMEA(TER
associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of Mrs. FHEE)  pESELATE - E—RE+—
Sy Wong Chor Fong. Mrs. Sy Wong Chor Fong B—HEFHEARAATIZESE At - BT E
resigned as a director of the Company with effect from AN ERECREERIEMES | B
1 December 2015. Accordingly, all share options T o
granted to Mr. Sy Kin Lun have been categorized under
“Other employees”.

3. Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak is the son of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, 3. ([FEAEAARARES R TERBEMTIEL
Charles who is a director and a substantial shareholder HETRF AN EARERLEZHEA(F
of the Company, and therefore an associate (as defined =5 FmEa) -
under the Listing Rules) of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles.

4. The closing price of the shares of the Company 4 A EIRDIE SR AR IS B R A kT

immediately before the date on which the options
were granted was HK$1.16.

The weighted average closing price of the shares of
the Company immediately before the dates on which
the options were exercised was HK$1.15.

N

BA1.168TT °

ARABBNEZEBRERTENERAYZ
AR DT B R 1.15 87T
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

31.

32.

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year was HK$14,511,000 (2014: NiD), of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$5,777,000
(2014: NiD) during the year ended 31 December 2015.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 38,963,360 share options outstanding
under the schemes, which represented approximately
4.5% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 55 to 56 of the financial statements.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents (i) the
excess of the nominal value of the shares issued by
Perfect Treasure Holdings (BVID) Limited in exchange for
the aggregate nominal value of the issued capital of
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 1996, prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares, amounting to HK$9,899,000, and (ii)
the credit of HK$488,930,000 arising from the reduction
of share premium account in 2003 less the distribution
of HK$18,181,000 in 2003 and the debits of
HK$5,935,000, HK$1,073,000, HK$34,307,000 and
HK$31,443,000 arising from the repurchase of shares
during the years ended 31 December 2012, 2008, 2007
and 2000, respectively.

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
entered into finance lease arrangements in respect of
property, plant and equipment with a total capital value
at the inception of the leases of approximately
HK$593,000.
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33.

34.
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PENDING LITIGATIONS 33. ZRFFIRZFED
The Group has received claims made against certain AEERERETHBEARRSRFFEmMERL 2
subsidiaries for damages in respect of alleged R -BEZEEER  EERAELEEDHME
defamation. Based on legal opinion, the directors are of B mAR PR R B ELAME B TR ] s E R A
the opinion that adequate provision has been made in MESZETR -
the financial statements to cover any potential liabilities
arising from the litigations.
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 34, KRERNZH
(a) As lessor (@) EBHEA
The Group leases certain investment properties REBRBSEROLERT S TIREME
(note 14) under operating lease arrangements, with (MsE14) - KEBZBHBP—Z=+THF -
leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to MO BER—RAEAREZIMNRES - 7
fifteen years. The terms of the leases generally also REMSAIFEEZERTRFE -
require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions.
At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future R-ZZE—RF+-_A=+—8  AEERE
minimum lease rental receivables under non- R TF BB E R 2 Tl HSE g Al
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling RREEHECERES
due as follows:
2015 2014
—2-H% —TNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET
Within one year —FR 3,087 2,295
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EZFERF(BEERMT) 8,655 7,343
After five years HF% 2,964 4,930
14,706 14,5608
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 34, REBYZHE (2
(b) As lessee ) FRAERAA
The Group leases certain of its office properties and AEERBECEHOLZHEEE THAE
printing equipment under operating lease ¥ NRERIEE - KERZYERERREZ
arrangements. Leases for these properties and MARE—ZELF -

printing equipment are negotiated for terms ranging
from one to seven years.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future RZE—RF+ZA=+—8  F&EEREE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable T 5 EAf B 2 TR A S A R 2
operating leases falling due as follows: ARRFIEESETR -
2015 2014
—2-1F —T—MEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
Within one year —FR 45,198 20,716
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EFRF(BREEEMF) 46,678 15,687
After five year HF& 3,451 -
95,327 36,403
35. COMMITMENTS 35. F&IE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B £ SCBt 5 34(b) B 2 48 & T E IR - A&
in note 34(b) above, the Group had the following capital B R & HAR B A T AdE

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

2015 2014
—E-FE —Z—UF
HK$’000 HK§°000
FHET FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: BREREDITAEREE
Land and buildings THREF 302,699 3,887
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group

1 15 ¥R R B ot
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36. BEAERS

(@ FRMEImR 2z M5l 2 R 5 B
S RERERFERIEREA LRI ML

had the following material transactions with related BARS :
parties during the year:
Notes 2015 2014
fizt —E-51F —E—F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
Rental income received from RE—HEEREZ
a joint venture RN ON (1 432 504
News service fee income received REAEREZER
from joint ventures HFERBEERKA (i) 16,166 18,335
Service fee income received from REGBEEEZEW
joint ventures RBERBA (iii) 10,246 9,308
Service fee income received from RE—HEBERARZ
an associate BERRBERKA (iii) 1,309 1,064
Advertising income received from RE—RBE QT2
an associate B EE KA (1 637 913
News service fee expenses paid to ST E AR
an associate ZEERRTS B AR (i) 1,460 840

The related party transactions in respect of service
fee income, advertising income and news service
expenses received from/paid to an associate above
also constituted continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Notes:

(i) The rental and advertising income were
determined between the parties with reference
to the prevailing market price.

(i) The news service fee was charged on an
annual fixed amount basis pursuant to the
relevant news service agreement.

(iii) The service fee was charged at cost plus a pre-
determined mark-up.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s balances with joint ventures
and an associate as at the end of the reporting
period are disclosed in notes 17 and 18 to the
financial statements, respectively.

B el BN —REBE AR RS E
WA~ BERANFTEIRGEBNEEEAL
RHMEXR ETRAE AR EERNHER

fiat -
i MEREERAREREEHLERITH

BEE -

G FERS ERRIEARHERS RS
FEBKE -

GiD) AR EARBRAINTEE IR E -

(b)) HEEIBALZAREFTTR

AREBESELRN —HBE QRN HREH
R EHFHB D RINM B RERMEL7 k18
KE

7
o
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. BEALTXRE (&
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the (O AEBEFEEFBEABZHM:
Group:
2015 2014
—E-FHf —T—MEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
Short term employee benefits MHEEREM 29,552 30,527
Post-employment benefits BERR 12 & A 118 173
Share-based payments PARR D B ERE 2 3R 1,916 -
Total compensation paid to key RAEEEBAEZN
management personnel ZBe @ 31,586 30,700
Further details of directors’ emoluments are S BT BER Y EMEM IS HEE -

included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. ARMTESSE
The carrying amounts of each category of financial REEER  SESRTAEMNKRmENT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
31 December 2015 —E—-RE+=-A=+—H
Financial assets HBEE
Financial
assets at fair value Available-
through for-sale
profit or loss -  Loans and financial
held for trading receivables assets Total
BATERA
s REENAE  ERE TRLENS )
Wizt BE-HEE  ERHE  HKEE CL
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
FET T AT = TEx
Loan to an associate A—EAEMEELNER 18 - 4,543 - 4,543
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 19 - - 8,247 8,247
Trade receivables FE U BR 7R 21 - 454,171 - 454,171
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEEBNFIE  HE K
deposits and other receivables HibEW BB R EE - 29,418 - 29,418
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELABERN
profit or loss NHEE 23 52,619 - - 52,619
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESEEER 24 - 844,164 - 844,164
52,619 1,332,296 8,247 1,393,162
Financial liabilities g 3 =R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
Notes SABRSE A 5B
ffaF MK asE
HK$’000
FET
Trade and bills payables R R R R & 25 68,777
Financial liabilities included in other BIEEE MM FIE - Bt
payables, accruals and provision RERBENVKER 146,113
Finance lease and hire purchase BMEMRLYRAEALENFE
contract payables 27 641
215,531
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. SMIEBEDE(E
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each category of financial RmERR  SESRTAMERENT : (&)

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows: (continued)

31 December 2014 —E2-NE+=A=+—H
Financial assets BKEE
Financial
assets at fair Available-
value through for-sale
profit or loss - held Loans and financial
for trading  receivables assets Total
BATEEA \ ‘
Noes  BREMEE  BRE  AghEw |
Mt AE-REEE  RBURZUE  MBEE it

HKS$'000  HKS$000 — HK$000  HK$'000
T FEL FEL FEL

Investments in joint ventures RagbENRE 17 - 76 - 76
Investments in an associate REELENRE 18 - 5,600 - 5,600
Available-for-sale investments AEHELE 19 - - 8,281 8,281
Trade receivables FEUTBR T 21 - 492 870 - 492,870
Financial assets included in prepayments, BEEENFE - HER
deposits and other receivables Hi WS IER B S B E - 22,581 - 22,581
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELABEERDN
profit or loss HRERE 23 5,941 - - 5,941
Cash and cash equivalents RBeRESZEER 24 - 826,095 - 826,095
5,941 1,347,222 8281 1361444
Financial liabilities g A=
Financial

liabilities at
amortised cost

Notes VASE SH A ARSI AR

ff et e B aE

HK§°000

T#ET

Trade and bills payables ER R R EE 25 92,041
Financial liabilities included in other BIEEEM N FUE R BRI R

payables and accruals paE 3= 148,179

Finance lease and hire purchase BERLNRABA LR IR
contract payables 27 3,296
244,116
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are
as follows:
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DFERAFESRHE

REHSHEATESEBELEIN  AEERK
AR TANKEERAFEIT

38.

Carrying amounts Fair values

EREE A¥E
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-0f —T—uEF —E-1fF ZE-E
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$°000
FET Fér FET FBr
Financial assets MBEE
Available-for-sale investments, A FESBR R A
at fair value e 8,247 8,281 8,247 8,281
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABER
through profit or loss MBS E E 52,619 5,941 52,619 5,941
60,866 14,222 60,866 14,222
Financial liabilities BRas
Finance lease and hire purchase BMERNRHEBELD
contract payables e Zh g 641 3,296 561 3,092

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals and amounts
due from joint ventures and an associate approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the
financial controller is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The corporate finance team
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

EEECLNE  TEANZETANE Y
HE B2 MELFEER - BURENR - BHE
REEE - BREENFUR - ke REBRYEGR
M EE - BRREEMREN AR IR
BB ALE - R TR A BRI R
BECENR—HBERARFENAFEERRE
(LR

AEEHYBEETENEEMHEERATRTE
TR TARFEFENBRMER - ©EMGHE
BEERAVBRERESZZ B SER - NEER
TR eEMBEELOTER TAEBENE
B WREERANEENEEEAE - HEHM
BRERMLIE - HEAEMEREEZEZE
SEFMAN T HREFHERER W o

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED  Annual Report 2015



Notes to Financial Statements

B 15 R R B ot

31 December 2015 W=_F—hAF+=-A=+—H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The

38. TRITANAFERAFESERFE (&)

MHEERBENAFENZTABRR SN
(REFRBRUERIN ERRZ THAIRSE R
AR o TOTTERBRRIIBIAGETAFE

following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

The fair values of finance lease and hire purchase
contract payables have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for finance lease and hire purchase

BEMEOMERAQERNFENRHENERE
AE AR ARG - EERR KB T2IHE
TARFR - BRRBMARBSRENH - R
E-HFT-_A=1+—H AEEXHFEAHRE
HHREE A QENFENTNEITRE B G S
TEKX -

contract payables as at 31 December 2015 was assessed

to be insignificant.

The fair values of available-for-sale investments and
financial investments at fair value through profit or loss

are based on quoted market prices.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:
Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2015

AHHEERERRATFELABRERZ HBERE
H R FEATIGRE RBERE

AFEERGE
TREATEBRSHTENRFETEERT
=

RATFEHEOEE

R-E-RF+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AT EHERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SR EARTHE BERFRTA
Ti5ME BWAE BEGAE
(Z8H—) (Z8H=) (BH=) &5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET Fi87 Fi87 F87
Available-for-sale investments: A HERE
Equity investments BRMRE 47 - - 47
Debt investments BERIRE 8,200 - - 8,200
Financial assets at fair value BRATERAEREZ
through profit or loss: BEE
Equity investments EmRE 15,220 - - 15,220
Debt investments BIIRE 37,399 - - 37,399
60,866 - - 60,866
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 December 2014
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38. TRITANAFERAFEERFE (&)

DVPESRHE (&

R-E-—NF+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AT £
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Va ESpNGIE ;i3 EART
i5mmE BAE SN
(£8-) (FH=) (ZH=) &5t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Available-for-sale investments: A HEERE
Equity investments BRRE 47 - - 47
Debt investments BERE 8,234 - - 8,234
Financial assets at fair value BAFERABREERZ
through profit or loss: BBERE
Equity investments Rt E 5,941 - - 5,941
14,222 - - 14,222
The Group did not have any financial liabilities RZE—RAFRERZZT—MF+_A=+—H" 'K
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2015 and SEWETAIZATETENTKAE -

2014.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil).

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2015

RAFERN  BEESR—MER - ZHEREN
BARBHER =2 FEFE(ZFT—0OF:
;)

#

==
i

NFEMERE

R-E-HRF+=-HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AFEHBRA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SE IR BEXATEE b |
w5 R E WAE BHEB A E .
(£8H-) (£4=) (BH=) &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Finance lease and hire MERHREEEL
purchase contract payables e RUA - 561 - 561
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38.

39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 December 2014

38. TMTANAFERDFESRBE (&)

DPESRHE (&)

R-ZE-—NF+=ZA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AFEH R
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R BRAER BRAA]
TI5RE BWAE BRBAE
(F5&—) (F4-) (BR=) At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET TET TET TET
Finance lease and hire MEMLREBEL
purchase contract payables FE 508 - 3,092 - 3,092
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. MIEREKREE B EREER

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise finance lease and hire purchase
contract payables, and cash and short term deposits. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from
its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency contracts, for
trading purpose.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk and market risk. The board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in
relation to derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, joint ventures and an associate. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant. For transactions that are not denominated
in the functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without the
specific approval of the Head of Credit Control.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-for-
sale financial assets, equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, amounts due from joint ventures,
other receivables and certain derivative financial
instruments, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, joint ventures and an
associate, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry
sector. There are no significant concentrations of credit
risk within the Group as the customer bases of the
Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in
different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flow from operations.
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39. MEEREREBERBEK (B)

FERR

AEERERFAREERFZE=T - %D
ELBERBETRS - ARBZBRRASR
EURMEERVAETRG 2KP  BARKR
EEBRZIZF o Lo AEE S T B R EAGR
TRFEER - AN BPTASY 2 EAREBRARIN - FEIA
BERREEMINERERTEZRS - A5E®E
ASEEEERIEFEERN  TERHEE

AEBEMPBEEZFERR  2RERS KR
SHERE - IHEEMHEE  BAFERA
Bz D ERE - BEAERENIE Bt
RUHERETITESRMTA  REHFHZK
B MEAZRBAFRZETAZEKEE

HRARBRERZAREERFZE=TN &
LRENMBENRETRS  HEARGHER
e FEERBEPORERER HFF - ki
BEEHLRANER - ARAEEEUREROE
FERBEZDTRARARRITE - At MFE
EERBBREETHOEE -

ERASEERRKERMES 2 EERRNE—
FEERE - R HRAM T 21 FHEE -

RBESERE

AEHERBRADECTE TAERAEESN
REORR - ZTERESRTAMMBEE
(BIanFEM R R VBB B AR FRFHE 2 ¥ 5 &

==
JLE °
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts, bank loans and finance leases. The
Group’s policy is that not more than 20% of its interest-
bearing bank borrowings should mature in any 12-month
period. 50% of the Group’s debts (defined as the
aggregate of finance lease and hire purchase contract
payables) would mature in less than one year as at 31
December 2015 (2014: 30%) based on the carrying
values of borrowings reflected in the financial
statements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

39.

BEREER EREEK (&)

REBESRRE(F)

AEENBREERRTES RITERLBE
HENRFRENFEERERZ N FE - A%
BB - TE R 20% 85 BIRTTEFUER 12
BARNRE - R_Z—RF+-A=+—H R
BFBHERARREERREE - NEE50%
(ZZ—MF : 30%) WEK (EERBEROL
HEANENFEBEAT) ETR—FREH -

REIEHR - REAORTRNRE - AEEET
BRENEIEERNT

2015
—EB-IfF
Less than 1to5
1 year years Total
PR1F 1E5% &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Trade and bills payables ERERRARERE 68,777 - 68,777
Financial liabilities included in other BIELEMEMNIE - B
payables, accruals and provision RIERBENMBAR 135,313 10,800 146,113
Finance lease and hire purchase BEMARABEEL
contract payables JE R 353 327 680
204,443 11,127 215,570
2014
“T-E
Less than 1to5
1 year years Total
PR1E 155 =X
HKS$ ’009 HK$ ’00£) HK§ ’0070
TET T TET
Trade and bills payables ERERERRERE 92,641 - 92,641
Financial liabilities included in other BIREE MM FIER
payables and accruals fEEtRIBZ S EE 148,179 - 148,179
Finance lease and hire purchase RERNREBEN
contract payables JER I 1,023 2,303 3,380
241,843 2,303 244,206
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates as all of the Group’s debts are at fixed interest
rates. The interest rates and terms of repayment of the
finance lease and hire purchase contract payables of the
Group are disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements.

Market risk

The Group trades in financial instruments, including
derivatives, equity securities and debt securities.

Market risk represents the risk that the fair values or
future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to changes in market variables, such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The
Group is exposed to market risk through its derivative
financial instruments and other investments.

The Group has investment guidelines that set out its
overall business strategies, its tolerance for risk and its
general risk management philosophy, and it has
established processes to monitor and control various
trading transactions in a timely and accurate manner.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of an
asset, liability or highly probable forecast transaction
denominated in a foreign currency will fluctuate because
of changes in the foreign exchange rate. When seeking
to optimise the returns on its funds available for
investment, the Group may invest in investments
denominated in currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar from time to time.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other variable
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and

equity.

1 15 ¥R R B ot

31 December 2015 N=_FE—AF+=-A=+—H

39. AR ERBZEREER (&)

M=ER

AEBZWAREERSRERANIEE LBIR
MHNER2EY) - AAKEMA RRGZREER
REFENE - AEEREHOLHEES QRMNR
TR MR 8 R B TS SRR I o 27 TR R

™SR

AEEEESHMTA  BREIIEATAE  RARES
KARTERESR ©

mERABRESHITAZ ATERRRESRES
AR EXRRESEHSERMEE - AEE
AETE SR T AREMKREMAZTIZRR -

AEEABRERD - B HBBEGER X
FERRRERE—RARERIES - PRI
FEE RIE ISR 500 R RO T R
7

SME R

SNERB IS SASNE BB AR - BERIERA
B AR TTE A 5 2 (B SN B T )
MR - BRELTHITEES EREE - A
B 6 7 B 3R A LA TE LA SN ¥ R B e 2
B o

TRHEATRBEHR - ANEEBRDANEF K A
RUARBEZNAEAREHNGRE - FIE
H{th BIE(RIE T o
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

39. MEEREREBERBER (&)

Market risk (continued) TSR (&)
Foreign exchange risk (continued) SNER S (&)
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease)
RMB rate profit before tax in equity*
ARBER BB A
tH/ aFEm, BzmEgm,/
(TF) (B2) CAD)*
% HK$°000 HK$’000
% FET FET
2015 —E-0F
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens MRBTHEARE
against RMB 55 5 1,791 -
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens MEBTHEEARE
against RMB oy 5) (1,791) -
2014 —T-mEF
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens MEBTHEEARE
against RMB 855 5 - -
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens WMEATHEARE
against RMB L (6)) - -

Equity and commodity price risks

Equity and commodity price risks are risks that the fair
values of financial assets and derivative financial
instruments decrease as a result of changes in the levels
of equity indices and commodity prices and the values
of individual securities or commodities. The Group is
exposed to equity and commodity price risks arising
from individual investments classified as held for trading.
The Group’s investments are listed or linked to securities
listed on stock exchanges in Hong Kong and are valued
at quoted market prices or quoted prices from
investment banks.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. IiEEMGEEEENBEE (&
AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued) TSR (&
Equity and commodity price risks (continued) BmREaEERR (&
The market equity index for the following stock IR FERNREIRERRNR S B EERRE
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading R U TNEBEAEL S MISIRERE - UAKRE
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and REEANN K= RFECLAT

its respective highest and lowest points during the year
were as follows:

31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2015 2015 2014 2014
—Z-5F &/ —T-mF &/ &
+-A=+-B  -®-EF +{-A=f-H  -—T-m%
Hong Kong G

- Hang Seng index —BEEH 21,914  28,588/20,368 23 605 25,363/21,138
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every TRETRAEERNADGN RREL M B EEN
10% change in the fair value of the financial assets, with NHE (RIBENREBHRNREE) 328 10%
all other variables held constant and before any impact BEURE - PR EMEEG RIS - WA

on tax, of the Group’s profit before tax and equity, METHIESN A E -

based on their carrying amount at the end of the
reporting period.

2015 2014
“EB-Hf —T-MEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T
Investments listed in: ETSME ETERE
Hong Kong BB 1,409 444
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. As at
31 December 2015, the Group complied with the
externally imposed capital requirements and there was
no indication of breach of covenants. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014.
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. B ABFE

ARBEEMBRABZFHBLT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and business  Registered capital the Company activities
SEALL BRARE/ AL R N
i) NCIEY BRREEE HEMER BRAEE D TEXK
Direct Indirect
R &
Chinese Information Radio United States US$100,000 - 100 Radio
of America common stock broadcasting
XE 100,000 37T BEaERE
gl
Job Market Publishing Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Newspaper
KBESHRER AR B ordinary shares publishing
28T WEHTT
TER
Land Profit Development British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Securities trading
Limited Hong Kong ordinary share and investment
HBRELRESE, 1ETT AHEERKRE
o gl
Perfect Treasure Investment Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Securities trading
Limited B ordinary shares and investment
BEERERAA 100,000 87T HFRELRE
AR
Premier Printing Group Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Printing
Limited G ordinary shares ENfal
HIRZ RENE =B AR A 2787
Rl
Sing Tao (Canada) Limited Canada CA$1 - 100 Investment
mex common share holding and
1in7c property holding
B WA X
MERE
Sing Tao Limited Hong Kong HK$77,650,000 - 100 Newspaper
ESBRAT BE ordinary shares publishing
77,650,000 7 7T WEHT

E B
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. BATEES (&2

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and business  Registered capital the Company activities
MR, BRITRE ADFEME
HELAREE BRREEE EMER BRAEE DL TEXK
Direct Indirect
HE &
Sing Tao Magazine Group British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Magazine
Limited Hong Kong ordinary share publishing
EEMTEEERANA BEBEBRLEE 17T and advertising
% =R agency
MRETR
EERE
Sing Tao Publishing Hong Kong HK$133,332 - 100 Book publishing
Limited B ordinary shares BT
EBHRAERAT HK$66,668
preference shares
133,332/87C
BB
66,668 7T
B
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$100,000 - 100 Newspaper
Los Angeles Ltd. of America common stock publishing
xH 100,000 E 7T HEBT
B
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$5,550,000 - 100 Newspaper
New York Ltd. of America common stock publishing
EH 5,550,000 3T MEEAT
B
Sing Tao Newspapers Australia AU$250,000 - 100 Newspaper
Pty. Limited B ordinary shares publishing
250,000 27T HERT
Rl
Sing Tao Newspapers United States US$2,335,000 - 100 Newspaper
San Francisco Ltd. of America common stock publishing
xH 2,335,000 X7T WERT
B
Sing Tao (U.K.) Ltd.# United Kingdom GBP2,500,000 - 100 Newspaper
HEH ordinary shares publishing
2,500,000 K& HEBT
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40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

41.
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40. B RBIFE (8

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name of subsidiary and business  Registered capital the Company activities
SEALL BRITRA/ AL R N
i) NCIEY BRREEE HEMER BRAEE D TEXK
Direct Indirect
HE &
1t R B B R I R 1T AR 75 People’s Republic RMB23,000,000 - 100 Software
BIRRA] #* of China (“PRC")/ registered capital development
Mainland China A% 23,000,000 70 ;IR
hEE AR ([HE]) FEE AR
RE A
REEERAHEE (ER) PRC/ RMB30,000,000 - 100 Distribution of
BREERT] # Mainland China registered capital print-media
hE R ERM AR 30,000,000 7T publications in

#  Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network

* The subsidiary is registered as a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise under the PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets and/or liabilities of the Group.
To give details of all the Company’s subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial
statements, due to the implementation of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current
year, the presentation and disclosures of certain items
and balances in the financial statements have been
revised to comply with the new requirements.
Accordingly, certain comparative amounts have been
restated to conform with the current year’s presentation
and disclosures.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED
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Mainland China
TR E A
15 B2 ED Rl

#  WIFAREBLOKE AN EH A READ B 20k
SETENEHPTA B X

* ZMEBARRRPBEREMA—HINE (B
B)% -

EERR LRIREBREARFRERE &
BRAEBREER FEEFEZEIEDBHZA
RAEMBATR - EERR - EFIIARRMAM
BAr - RESENITE
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. RATHERRE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

BREARTARBERRABARRKRZERAT

follows:
2015 2014
—E-1f ZE-NE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RS 5,424 4,972
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR 2 K& 813,271 843,554
Total non-current assets FRBDEERE 818,695 848,520
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FARFRIE « B K EAMEYERIE 939 1,156
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEH 5,696 5,133
Total current assets B EERE 6,635 6,289
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables and accruals Hofth JEAT B R AT R 5,085 5,049
Total current liabilities REREAEE 5,085 5,049
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 1,550 1,240
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ERABERECZEELE 820,245 849,766
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEREERE 1,119 969
Total non-current liabilities FERBEERE 1,119 969
Net assets EEFE 819,126 848,797
EQUITY M
Issued capital BETRA 173,072 167,809
Reserves (note) i (PsE) 646,054 680,988
Total equity H 4 EE 819,126 848,797

Siu Sai Wo Lau Chung Man, Louis
gl 2l 3z

Director Director

EF FF
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. RATHIERRE (45)

COMPANY (continued)
Note: Byt
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RABREERSAT
Share Asset
premium  Contributed  revaluation Share option Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
Rty aER BABS SEEMRE BRERE RBRA @zt
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
TEx TEn TEn TErx TErx TEx
At 1 January 2014 R-F-ME-A—H 710 502,941 2,594 9,018 218,036 733,899
Comprehensive income/ FERENE /

(loss) for the year: (B8) :

Loss for the year AEEEE - - - - (3,687) (3,687)
Gain on property revaluation MEE[YE - - 417 - - 417
Income tax effect on property MESH 2B

revaluation TE - - (105) - - (105)
Total comprehensive income/ FE2EMKS/

(loss) for the year (&%) asE - - 312 - (3,687) (3,375)
Issue of ordinary shares BIILEk 1,248 - - (494) - 754
Final 2013 dividend paid BEN-2—=%

RERE N N - - (33,509) (33,509)
Interim 2014 dividend 2 -MEFHRE - - - - (16,781) (16,781)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ—MFE+_F
1 January 2015 =+—Bk
“Z-1%—-A—-H 1,958 502,941 2,906 9,124 164,059 680,988
Comprehensive income/ FEREANE

(loss) for the year: (B#8) :

Loss for the year AEEEE - - - - (4,477 (4,477)
Gain on property revaluation MEEHKE - - 604 - - 004
Income tax effect on property MEER- BN

revaluation TE - - (15D - - (151)
Total comprehensive income/ FE2EME/

(loss) for the year (B1E) g8 - - 453 - (4,477) (4,024)
Issue of ordinary shares BITLBR 22,797 - - (7,721 - 15,076
Equity-settled share option WEEERIRE

arrangements T - - - 5,777 - 5,777
Transfer of share option reserve PO UBE IR RS

upon the forfeiture of share BRI

options f#E - - - (29D 291 -
Final 2014 dividend paid ERZZ—mF

RERE - - - - (34,509) (34,509)
Interim 2015 dividend “E-RERERE - - - - (17,254) (17,254)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—AF+ZA

=t—H 24,755 502,941 3,359 6,889 108,110 646,054
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
(i) the excess of the fair value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 1996, prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares, over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor,
amounting to approximately HK$104,950,000, and
(ii) the credit of approximately HK$488,930,000 arising
from the reduction of share premium account in 2003
less the distribution of approximately HK$18,181,000 in
2003 and the debits of HK$5,935,000, HK$1,073,000,
HK$34,307,000 and HK$31,443,000 arising from the
repurchase of shares during the years ended 31
December 2012, 2008, 2007 and 20006, respectively.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the Company may make distributions to its
members out of the contributed surplus under certain

circumstances.

The share option reserve of the Company comprises the
fair value of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy
for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should

the related options expire or be forfeited.

43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2016.
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Schedule of Major Properties

T2VEHME

31 December 2015 —E—AF1+=-A=+—H

Approx.
gross Group’s Lease
Address Lot No. Use floor area interest expiry  Main occupants
oy rEH k)
31k ith B 4 5% R# ARNE EEE ERFY IEGRE
(square feet) %
(‘FITR) %

(D PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWNER OCCUPATION:
BEERZME

Located in Hong Kong
TR EE

1. Rooms 1401-06, 14/F, Inland Lot No. 2 Commercial 4,279 100 2842 Flash Bright
Car Po Commercial Building, A 257 [GES Development Limited
No. 37-43 Pottinger Street, SHERERAT
Central
iR
PREVEH] 37-43 5
REBEAE
1418 1401-06

2. 7 Chun Cheong Street, Lot No. 39 Industrial 156,798 100 2047 Premier Printing
Tseung Kwan O, 108 39 5% I Group Limited
Industrial Estate, iR 2 REN
Tseung Kwan O EEBRRAA
BER
[

BEETH®

Located in Mainland China

fu e B o4t

3. Unit 8E, Lan Yuan Mansion, N/A Residential 1,132 100 2064 Sing Tao News
Beijing Jindao Garden, TER Fx Corporation Limited
No. 1 Xibahe Nan Road, EEHEEEERAR
Chaoyang District,
Beijing, Hebei Province
LAk
PO E B 157
IReEEE
WiESEE

4. Units 501 and 502, N/A Commercial 10,064 100 2052 Sing Tao News
The Spaces International Centre, NEA [GES Corporation Limited
No. 8 Dongdagiao Road, EENEEEERAR
Chaoyang District, Beijing
IErmEG R
R 8 5%kt 1 9 1E
i 8 B R o

501 E K502 =
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Schedule of Major Properties

+

ZMERE

31 December 2015 —F—AHF+=-A=+—H

Approx.
gross Group’s Lease
Address Lot No. Use floor area interest expiry  Main occupants
BmRm i 3L HA
31k 1t B} 4R 5% A& HENE  FaER ERFE IEGARE
(square feet) %
(‘FHR) %
() PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWNER OCCUPATION: (continued)
BERRZNE: (8)
Located in the United States of America
fIRER]

5. 215 Littlefield Avenue, Lot 7 Industrial 14,900 100 Freehold  Sing Tao Newspapers

South San Francisco Block 4 T interest San Francisco Ltd.
KAKER

6. 188 Lafayette Street, Lot 40 Commercial 16,200 100 Freehold  Sing Tao Newspapers

New York Block 473 EES interest New York Ltd.
K AR

7. 17059 Green Drive, Tract No. 26265  Industrial 63,500 100 Freehold  Sing Tao Newspapers
City of Industry, Lot 7 I interest Los Angeles Ltd.
Los Angeles KA 7R

(I)  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES:

REME
Located in Hong Kong
&%

1. Rooms 1305-06, 13/F, Inland Lot Commercial 1,632 100 2842 Independent third parties
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 [HES (long term)  BYE=7
No.37-43 Pottinger Street, NER 2 5% (REH)

Central

IR

PREVE 37-43 552
RERENE
13/ 1305-06 =

2. Room 1504, 15/F, Inland Lot Commercial 471 100 2842 Vacant
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 [ (long term)  EE&

No.37-43 Pottinger Street, IHLER 2 5% (REH)

Central

HIR

WEEHT 37-43 5%
ESYSE YN
15181504 F
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Schedule of Major Properties
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31 December 2015 —E—AF1+=-A=+—H

Approx.
gross Group’s Lease
Address Lot No. Use floor area interest expiry  Main occupants
#8E  A%H s
31k ith B 4 5% R# HRAE FhEE ERFH IEGERE
(square feet) %
(*FAR) %
(I)  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (continued)
REnx: (&)
Located in Canada
iR mex
3. 411-417 Dundas Street West, Part of lots Commercial 23,000 100 Freehold  Sing Tao Newspapers
Toronto, 6 and 7 [HES interest (Canada 1988)
Ontario Plan D-116 KA RE R Limited
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Five Year Financial Summary

HFEMBHME

A summary of the published results and of the assets,

liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the

AEBBEREMRFE 2O TERE  EELAR
AR R E R R R A C TR EESM B HRER

last five financial years, as extracted from the published R e
audited financial statements, is set out below.
RESULTS e
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+—-HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-HFE —T-NF —T—=F —T——F —T——F
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HEK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET FET FET FHET
Revenue A 1,864,200 1,986,679 2,035,661 2,210,908 2,390,903
Profit for the year AF 62,280 114,167 105,466 120,115 138,627
Attributable to: AR AL -
Owners of the Company KRREB A 62,280 114,167 105,662 120,229 138,668
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R = - - (196) (114) 4D
62,280 114,167 105,466 120,115 138,627
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING BE - - QEREERES
INTERESTS
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-RF —T—NOF —T—=F —FT——-F —T——F
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HEK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET FET FET FET
Total assets BERE 2,460,401 2,504,391 2,462,932 2,424,191 2,400,672
Total liabilities BERE (399,520) (448,409) (466,036) (473,118) (492,137)
Non-controlling interests FEEAR M A - - - (196) (310)
2,060,881 2,055,982 1,996,896 1,950,877 1,908,225
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